DESIGN OF AN RF ENERGY HARVESTING PMIC

A Dissertation Presented to The Academic Faculty

by

Ahmed Samy Ahmed Ghoniem Aya Hazem Ghobashy Sherihan Khaled Mohamed Nour

In Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree Bachelor of Science in the Electronics and Electrical Communication Faculty of Engineering Cairo University

> Under supervision of Dr. Hassan Mustafa Hassan

Faculty of Engineering, Cairo University Fall 2019

COPYRIGHT © 2019 BY AHMED A. GHONIEM, AYA H. GHOBASHY, SHERIHAN K. MOHAMMED

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Foremost, we would like to express Our sincere gratitude to our advisor Prof. Hassan Mustafa for the continuous support of our Bachelor study and research, for his patience, motivation, enthusiasm, and immense knowledge. His guidance helped us in all the time of research and writing of this thesis. we could not have imagined having a better advisor and mentor for our Bachelor study.

Besides our advisor, we would like to thank the rest of our advisors from the industrial and faculty sides: Prof. Amr Hafez, Prof. Ahmed Nader, for their encouragement, insightful comments, and hard questions.

our sincere thanks also go to Eng. Michael Nageb, Eng. Ali El-Hussein, and teaching assistants and faculty staff, for offering us the help and support and leading us and allowing us to working on diverse exciting projects within user of faculty or within internships, or industrial discussions.

Last but not the least, we would like to thank our families, friends and colleges for helping us and supporting us and supporting us spiritually throughout our lives..

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	iv
LIST OF TABLES	vii
LIST OF FIGURES	viii
List of Acronyms	xi
Abstract	xii
CHAPTER 1. Introduction	1
1.1 Motivation	1
1.2 Problem statement	3
1.3 Solution	4
1.3.1 RF Energy harvesters and rectifiers	4
1.3.2 Industrial ICs	5
1.3.3 System Block Diagram	6
1.4 Organization	8
CHAPTER 2. MPPT	9
Background and related work	9
2.1 Design of MPPT (Concepts point of view)	9
2.1.1 Approach Definition and novelty	9
2.1.2 System Design, Definition and Specifications of MPPT	13
2.1.3 DCM Boost Converter	17
2.1.4 Switching circuitry, filtering and storing	30
2.1.5 Hysteresis comparator	31
2.1.6 Digital Controller	35
2.1.7 DCO	37
2.2 Integration of the MPPT Loop	42
2.2.1 Gate driver	42
2.2.2 Results and simulations of the loop	43
2.2.3 Other Test cases	46
2.2.4 Corner simulations	49
2.2.5 Layout	55
CHAPTER 3. Output regulation loop	60
3.1 Problem Statement	60
3.2 DC-DC Conversion Topologies	60
3.2.1 Linear Voltage Regulators	62
3.2.2 Switching Voltage Regulators	66
3.3 System Design and circuit description	72
3.3.1 High Duty Cycle Current-starved Relaxation Oscillator	78
3.3.2 Feedback comparator	82

3.3.3 System integration of the output regulation boost stage	83
CHAPTER 4. Bandgap	90
4.1 Introduction	90
4.2 Proposed Design	91
4.3 Art of work for the circuitry of BG	92
4.3.1 Bandgap operation	92
4.3.2 Start-up problem of BG circuitry	94
4.4 Results	95
4.4.1 Typical results	95
4.4.2 Process variations at different corners	98
4.4.3 Layout Results	101
4.5 Voltage to current converter	104
4.5.1 Operation	104
4.5.2 Results	105
CHAPTER 5. Cold Start block	107
5.1 Introduction	107
5.2 Cold Start Blocks	108
5.2.1 Start-up oscillator	108
5.2.2 Non-overlapping clock generator and buffer	110
5.2.3 charge pump	114
5.3 Overall results of cold start unit	117
5.4 Cold start comparator	120
CHAPTER 6. Conclusion	123
REFERENCES	125

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1.3-1 Surveying different rectifiers	
Table 1.3-2 Industrial ICs Survey	5
Table 1.3-3 General Specs of PMIC	7
Table 2.1-1 Values of components of the Boost converter	
Table 2.1-2 Sizing for boost converter	
Table 2.1-3 List of specs for Boost operation	
Table 2.1-4 Process variation for hysteresis comparator	
Table 2.2-1 Comparison between different models of testing	
Table 2.2-2 General achieved specs of the MPPT loop	
Table 4.4-1 Specs achieved for BGR	

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 2.1-1 MPPT IV and PV Curves	. 10
Figure 2.1-2 Block Diagram of MPPT	. 13
Figure 2.1-3 Matching the source and load impedance	. 16
Figure 2.1-4 DCM Boost Converter	. 17
Figure 2.1-5 DCM Boost action on current ripples	. 17
Figure 2.1-6 Modes of operation a CCM Boost converter	. 18
Figure 2.1-7 combining the two modes with the duty cycle action	. 19
Figure 2.1-8 action of duty cycle vs the conversion ratio value	. 20
Figure 2.1-9 Model of the DC resistance	. 23
Figure 2.1-10 Stability curves vs the dc resistance relativity values	. 24
Figure 2.1-11 Modes of operation of DCM boost converter	. 26
Figure 2.1-12 the voltage across time on the inductor	. 27
Figure 2.1-13 DCM with diode implemented as PMOS	. 28
Figure 2.1-14 Switching circuitry	. 30
Figure 2.1-15 Hysteresis comparator using current unbalance	. 31
Figure 2.1-16 typical hysteresis window	. 34
Figure 2.1-17 Flow chart of the MPPT loop	. 35
Figure 2.1-18 3 stages ring oscillator	. 37
Figure 2.1-19 simple two stages of the ring oscillator	. 38
Figure 2.1-20 current starved VCO model	. 39
Figure 2.1-21 DCO implementation	. 40
Figure 2.1-22 Perturbation in frequency vs bits of the digital controller	. 41
Figure 2.2-1 Gate driver between boost converter and DCO	. 42
Figure 2.2-2 400 mV, 250 Ω test model results	. 44
Figure 2.2-3 Test 2 simulation results	. 46
Figure 2.2-4 Extreme test case for low power	. 47
Figure 2.2-5 corner simulations vs change in threshold voltage	. 49
Figure 2.2-6 threshold voltage change with temperature	. 50
Figure 2.2-7 DCO slow slow simulations for -40 and 125oC	. 51
Figure 2.2-8 DCO fast fast simulations for -40 and 125oC	. 51
Figure 2.2-9 Hysteresis comparator Fast Fast variations	. 52
Figure 2.2-10 Hysteresis comparator Slow Slow variations	. 53
Figure 2.2-11 Fast Fast variations of boost converter	. 54
Figure 2.2-12 Slow Slow variations of Boost converter	. 55
Figure 2.2-13 Layout of hysteresis comparator	. 56
Figure 2.2-14 Post-Layout simulations for hysteresis window	. 57
Figure 2.2-15 DCO layout	. 58
Figure 2.2-16 Post-layout result for DCO output for 0000 digital input	. 59
Figure 2.2-17 DCO output for 1111 input	. 59
Figure 3.2-1: Block diagram of a typical electronic power conversion system	. 61
Figure 3.2-2: Linear regulator core	. 62
Figure 3.2-3: Linear series regulator	. 63

Figure 3.2-4: Block diagram of a typical LDO using a PMOS	64
Figure 3.2-5: Asynchronous Boost Converter	67
Figure 3.2-6: Synchronous Boost Converter	68
Figure 3.2-7: Steady-state timing diagram of a PWM switching converter	70
Figure 3.2-8: Signal waveforms of the PFM operation control in steady-state	71
Figure 3.2-9: Efficiency characteristics of PWM and PFM illustrated	72
Figure 3.3-1: Block diagram of output regulation loop	73
Figure 3.3-2: Conceptual waveform of the PFM mode converter. (a) Typical single pul	se
operation. (b) Single pulse operation with decreased input voltage as compared to	
situation shown in (a).	75
Figure 3.3-3: Multi pulse operation (a) Single pulse operation with increased load as	
compared to the condition shown in Fig. 3-11a. (b) Multi pulse operation, when the	
converters idle time is exhausted due to increased load or conversion ratio or for both	76
Figure 3.3-4: Single-phase current-mode relaxation oscillator and timing diagram	79
Figure 3.3-5: dual-phase current-mode relaxation oscillator and its timing diagram	80
Figure 3.3-6: Transient response of the designed oscillator	81
Figure 3.3-7: Feedback comparator circuit	82
Figure 3.3-8: AC simulation of the Feedback Comparator	83
Figure 3.3-9: Test bench of output regulation loop	84
Figure 3.3-10: Simulation results of the output regulation stage at $Vin = 200 \text{ mV}$	85
Figure 3.3-11: Magnifying the simulation results of the output regulation stage at Vin	=
200 mV	85
Figure 3.3-12: Simulation results of the output regulation stage at $Vin = 600 \text{ mV}$	86
Figure 3.3-13: Magnifying the simulation results of the output regulation stage at Vin	=
600 mV	87
Figure 3.3-14: Simulation results of the output regulation stage at $Vin = 900 \text{ mV}$	87
Figure 3.3-15: Magnifying the simulation results of the output regulation stage at Vin	=
900 mV	88
Figure 4.1-1 Temperature compensation using BJTS	91
Figure 4.2-1 Bandgap core	92
Figure 4.3-1 Schematic of OPA used in the proposed sub-BGR	94
Figure 4.3-2 Startup problem of the BG	95
Figure 4.4-1 Voltage variation across temperature	95
Figure 4.4-2 Voltage derivation across temperature	96
Figure 4.4-3 power consumption of the band gap	96
Figure 4.4-4 PSRR of the bandgap	97
Figure 4.4-5 immunity to VDD variations	97
Figure 4.4-6 voltage variation with temperature at SS corner	98
Figure 4.4-7 voltage variation with temperature at FF corner	99
Figure 4.4-8 using M11 as a trimming circuit	99
Figure 4.4-9 output voltage variations at SS corner after using a trimming circuit 1	100
Figure 4.4-10 output voltage variations at FF corner after using a trimming circuit 1	100
Figure 4.4-11 op-amp layout 1	101
Figure 4.4-12 op-amp simulation DC gain 1	101
Figure 4.4-13 post layout simulation of DC gain 1	102
Figure 4.4-14 Band cap core layout 1	102

Figure 4.4-15 Layout simulation of Band gap core	. 103
Figure 4.5-1 voltage to current converter	. 104
Figure 4.5-2 current variation across temperature	. 105
Figure 4.5-3 current variation across temperature at SS corner	. 105
Figure 4.5-4 current variation across temperature at FF corner	. 106
Figure 5.1-1 structure of a cold start unit	. 108
Figure 5.2-1 Oscillator schematic	. 109
Figure 5.2-2 Oscillator Output	. 109
Figure 5.2-3 Oscillator Layout	. 109
Figure 5.2-4 post Layout simulation of oscillator	. 110
Figure 5.2-5 Non-overlapping clock generator schematic	. 111
Figure 5.2-6 Layout of non-overlapping clock generator	. 111
Figure 5.2-7 Buffer schematic	. 112
Figure 5.2-8 Buffer layout	. 113
Figure 5.2-9 clock driving charge pump	. 113
Figure 5.2-10 post Layout simulation of clock driving charge pump	. 114
Figure 5.2-11 two stages of a charge pump	. 114
Figure 5.2-12 charge pump	. 115
Figure 5.2-13 Layout of the used charge pump	. 116
Figure 5.2-14 charge pump efficiency at various loads	. 116
Figure 5.2-15 charge pump efficiency at different input voltages @Rout= 13M	. 117
Figure 5.3-1 cold start output @ vin=0.2v	. 117
Figure 5.3-2 Layout simulation of cold start	. 118
Figure 5.3-3 cold star output @ FF corner	. 118
Figure 5.3-4 cold star output @ SS corner	. 119
Figure 5.3-5 efficiency of cold start at various loads	. 120

LIST OF ACRONYMS

PFM	Pulse Frequency modulation
PWM	Pulse width modulation
PDM	Pulse density modulation
MPPT	Maximum power point tracking
DCM	Discontinuous conduction mode
ССМ	Continuous conduction mode
BG	Bandgap
DCO	Digital controlled oscillator
PMIC	Power management Integrated circuit
RF	Radio frequencies
WSN	Wireless sensor network
SOC	System on chip
PV	Photovoltaic
TRX	Transceiver
ΙΟΤ	Internet of thing
LDO	Low drop-out regulator
FOCV	Fractional Open circuit voltage
PVT	Process voltage temperature
FF	Fast Fast
SS	Slow Slow
СР	Charge Pump

ABSTRACT

This Work presents an Ultra-low-power PMIC design for RF energy harvesting applications. The PMIC works with a two loops regulation for input and output regulations, and utilizes an MPPT using a hill climbing approach, operating with a PFM mode of operation and maximizing for rectifiers operating for output in range of 100 Ω -500 Ω , with input power in range of -18dBm to 0 dBm, the output regulation loop act with a mixed operation between PWM and PDM modes, and regulate the output at 1.2 V DC support, the design reach a quiescent power below 1µW, the system has a self-start up unit operating from 200 mV and boosting to 1.2V forming the VDD, the PMIC interfaces with a digital controller for the operation of MPPT and other digital signals within the IC, the peak efficiency of the MPPT reaches up to 64% and the tracking efficiency reach up to 97% while the output regulation loop operate reaching efficiency > 65% for different Vin at 6 $K\Omega$ load with max efficiency 72% at Vin = 200mV, the IC is built using TSMC 130nm CMOS technology , the PMIC is simulated typically and with corners for prelayout simulations, and post-layout simulations are performed for the layout design.

Index Terms ____ Energy harvesting, Hysteresis comparator, DCO, Cold-Start, Output regulations, RF rectifiers, low power applications, IOT applications.

CHAPTER 1. INTRODUCTION

In This chapter, an overview on the system used and the motivation behind choices of specifications is presented, by the end of this chapter, the reader should understand the overall idea of the PMIC design and its purpose of operations.

1.1 Motivation

Energy harvesting is a fast-growing technological advances that has manifested itself in many of our applications, this growing demand is invested in the IOT, those applications include biomedical applications, communication systems as WSN, military applications and other applications, those applications require to be self-sustainable, reliable and cheap, one way of reaching those goals is to use the power carefully, or by other means get free energy, so this would require to integrate both energy harvesting and power management units, PMU is able to regulate the output of the energy harvesting units which allow more clean and efficient DC support to SOC circuitry, in return allowing those components to reach higher efficiencies and higher specifications, for such regulation to exist, PMU lineup and system design is critical to define the levels required in regulation, several industrial PMIC designs for energy harvesting from different sources as PV, Piezo or thermal harvesters, can support efficiencies higher than 90% and can operate with very low quiescent power, supporting higher power capability and support for preceding circuitry, for such design to exist, designer should define the levels of leakage, the loss paths and many other aspects within the system design, and hence, define a suitable system block diagram to achieve his specifications.

RF energy harvesting is one of the energy harvesting types, that operate on signals within air supported by different frequencies using different rectification models, those models prove their efficiency, but they may lead to large ripples and changing levels of DC output relative to the power input to their system, this would require relative to any other harvester a certain PMIC to regulate such point and allow it's operation within the requirements of the final product, the degrees of regulation may differ relative to the needs of the product, so different lineups can be define, in certain systems[1], RF energy harvesting is used as a start-kick and then operation of PMIC support another stronger harvester, other systems are built as an SOC to fully support a TRX system[2].

each PMIC design is built for a certain requirements and hence it's applications and design specifications are defined, our system is required to operate at low power levels of -18dBm to 10 dBm for the support of different IOT applications, the system is built with an MPPT for input regulations to allow the maximization of input power, and then another loop is defined for the output to perform output regulations, and a start-up unit is defined to allow the formation of the VDD of operation, as the speed of the system is low, technology is relaxed to 130 nm to avoid proximity effects and layout problems, and system lineup is defined for such points.

1.2 <u>Problem statement:</u>

RF Energy harvesters and rectifiers an converter from an AC signal to DC signal, but the output signal is not regulated, which means that it is not sustainable and can't be used to provide any support as a DC source or biasing source, adding on that, the problems of ripples would be critical for blocks of low PSRR, this would require a PMIC to be used to regulated such output from rectifiers and support the required blocks with a good DC source and biasing source, but to achieve this requirements, certain considerations are defined within the PMIC as the type of regulation loop, the stability of the loop, the start-up capability, self-operation, and most importantly the power consumption within such system.

The PMIC design take many forms as system level design which is essential to define the requirements vs the topologies, PMIC can operate with different modes as PFM, PWM, and PDM, each mode of operation is define relative to the operation of the loop and the requirements, and dropped if a violation to specs took place, also the type of regulators as boost, buck, buck boost, CUK and LDO, all those are defined relative to the requirements and needs of loops or overall loop.

1.3 Solution

1.3.1 <u>RF Energy harvesters and rectifiers</u>

To define the PMIC operation, we define the harvester, the harvester level of ripples, performance with a certain output load and levels of power at which good efficiency is achieved, all those concerns are important to define the specs of a PMIC, this required a certain Survey to allow us to define those specs.

Points of Comparison	[2]	[13]	[14]
Device type	GaAs HEMT	CMOS 130 nm	E- PHEMT
Input Power	16 dBm (39.8107 mW)	10 dBm (10 mW)	17 dBm (50.1187 mW)
Load Resistance	1 to 10kΩ	N/A	10 to 500Ω
Peak Efficiency	51 %	30%	83% (Eff. From 10% to 83%)
Output Power (input power to our system)	20.303 mW at max efficiency	3 mW at max eff.	41.598 mW @ max eff.
Frequency	985 MHz	2.4 GHz	900 MHz and 2.45 GHz

Table 1.3-1 Surveying different rectifiers

For the levels desired, the survey included different Energy harvesting designs, each design operates with different technology and certain frequency as shown in table 1.1-1.

The results shown in the table describe different categories of rectifiers, for an adaptive IC, considerations are made for both on-chip and off-chip models, also by comparing the specs and definitions within the next sections, the optimum model chosen was the CMOS model, and hence a certain input specs are defined accordingly.

1.3.2 Industrial ICs

For more generalized and precise definition of specifications, another survey is made on different systems in the industry, as we have defined the rectifier model, so a certain starting point specs are set, to define an optimum system to match those specs with respect to the blocks capabilities and the system design, certain industrial PMIC for energy harvesting were surveyed, those ICs are a generalized input sources IC, which configure on different sources, and from those sources is RF energy harvesting, only one industrial IC that may consider using only RF energy harvesting which is AEM 30940, the survey is presented in table 1.2-1.

	ADP 5091-5092	BQ25570	Max17710	AEM30940
Input voltage	0.08 V to 3.3 V	0.1 V to 5.1 V	75 mV to 5.7 V	50 mV to 5 V
Input Source	PV-PZT-TEG-AC(RF)	PV-PZT-TEG-RF	PV-PZT-TEG- RF	PV-PZT-TEG-RF
Input Power	6 μ W to 600 mW	$5 \mu W$ to $510 m W$	$1 \ \mu W$ to $100 \ mW$	-18.5dBm to 10dBm
Output voltage	1.5 to 3.3V	2 to 5.5 V	1.8, 2.3 or 3.3V	1.2, 1.8 or 4.1V
Rating Current	150 mA @1.5-3.6V	110 mA		20mA@1.8V 80mA@1.8-4.1V
Cold Start	380 mV - 6 μW	330 mV - 15 μW		380 mV - 3 μW
Operating Temp	-40°C to +125°C	-40°C to +125°C	-40°C to +125°C	-40 °C to +125 °C
Primary BATT	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
MPPT	Yes	Yes	NO	Yes
Regulators moods	PFM Hysteresis (LDO)	PFM Hysteresis (general)	PFM	PFM
MPPT sensing time	16 Sec.	16 Sec.		0.33 sec
Battery Types	LI-ION, Thin-film, Super-capacitor, or a conventional capacitor	LI-ION, Thin-film, Super-capacitor, or a conventional capacitor	LI-ION, Thin- film, Super- capacitor, or a conventional capacitor	LI-ION, Thin- film, Super capacitor, or a conventional capacitor

Table 1.3-2 Industrial ICs Survey

From our point of view and the requirements, we defined the BQ22570, from the data sheet we defined a system that is comparable to the BQ22570 system and defining our specs.



1.3.3 System Block Diagram

To define the PMIC, we define a set of specifications and requirements as illustrated above, the specs hence define the modes of operation of the loop and its ability to maintain the required output and operation to achieve the required level of DC, and relative to the Industrial PMIC and literature point of view, we define the block diagram, our proposed system consists of two regulating loops, an input regulation loop presented by the MPPT operating as a boost converter with a PFM control loop for tracking the maximum power, and output regulation loop that regulate output at 1.2 V as required using PFM operation,

and within the system design a reference generator is required for the generation of reference voltage and biasing current for different blocks, a start-up unit is considered to allow the system to operate with the required VDD, so it start to charge the VDD capacitor at the initial operation then the MPPT continues, to allow the differentiating between the MPPT and the Start-up circuit, a hysteresis comparator is set to define two different points of operation, one is defined for the MPPT and other for the Start-up unit.

Specs of each block is defined relative to the specs of the overall system, and the ability of each loop to achieve certain points of functionality, in table 1.3-1 general specs of such system is defined and in the next chapters, each block would be defined with respect to general considerations in system and circuit levels.

Points of Specifications	Specifications
Input power to system	-18 dBm to 10 dBm (RF)
Input resistance range	100Ω-1000Ω
(Rectifier)	(choose 100Ω) as intermediate value
Input voltage range	100mV - 800mV
Output Voltage	1.2 V
Power consumption	500nW-1µW
Quiescent current	10 nA-100nA
MPPT Required	Yes
Regulatory Mood	PFM/PWM/PDM
Battery Type	Super Capacitor(2µF-4µF)

Table 1.3-3 General Specs of PMIC

1.4 Organization

The thesis is defined into chapters that define the block diagram expressed above, the system design of each block with respect to other blocks is defined within each chapter, and sections within each chapter define the circuits and integration, the design is built using a TSMC 130 nm KIT, the chapters are defined as follow:

Chapter 2, introduces the system design and circuit design of blocks within the MPPT Loop and integration of the loop, also the chapter include the corner simulations and layout simulations for certain blocks within the loop, by the end of this chapter the reader should understand the functionality of MPPT and the topology used, also the low power consumption techniques and corner and layout calibration techniques.

Chapter 3, introduces the design of the output regulation loop, this loop is analogic to that of the MPPT but targeting to keep the output on a certain desired level of 1.2 V, the loop operates with a PFM opertation, and use a DCM and simulation for the loop are included within this chapter.

Chapter 4, introduces the BG circuit design and specification of its circuits, simulations for the loop for corners and typical cases are included, layout simulations and techniques are presented as well.

Chapter 5, introduces the start-up circuit design and definition, the circuit design of such unit is a boost-based design similar to that presented in chapter 3 and 4 but replacing the inductor topology by a CP topology.

Finally, Chapter 6 and it introduces a conclusion for the full PMIC design.

CHAPTER 2. MPPT

Background and related work

As we operate with a low Power RF signals in the range of -18 dBm to 0 dBm, we require to operate on maximum power point to allow an efficient harvesting profile and also high overall system efficiency, maximum power point can be achieved by different approaches such as perturb and observe, Hill climbing and fractional open circuit voltage, each method requires a certain flow of tracking to the MPP (Maximum Power Point), this is done by a flow chart and such flow chart defines the design flow of the MPPT such as Selection of Blocks such as oscillators, comparators, Digital controllers and logic, type of DC-DC converters as boost, buck or buck-boost, a good flow chart would allow the designer to have a good MPPT and hence an efficient PMIC, a bad flow chart would lead to a high complexity in design and high quiescent power within the blocks of choice, in this chapter we would discuss the design of the MPPT and the novelty in its flow chart and system design, hence, the design of each block and results and simulations for such blocks with respect to typical conditions, corner conditions and layout considerations.

2.1 <u>Design of MPPT (Concepts point of view):</u>

2.1.1 Approach Definition and novelty:

The MPPT used is defined for a Hill Climbing approach which depends on climbing the curve of power vs voltage till reaching the MPP and then going back and forth around such point to allow the tracking of the MPP, in Fig. 2, the Hill Climbing approach is illustrated in further sections.



Figure 2-1 MPPT IV and PV Curves

To illustrate the different approaches of MPP Tracking, in Fig.2 there exist two curves, a curve defines I vs V and other is P vs V, the I vs V curve introduce P where P=IV, as V increase, I flow such increase till reaching the MPP where I*V reaches its maximum value, such a point is required to be tracked and it is translated also in power as shown in the PV of blue, the style of motion on the curve to detect the MPP is what is so called an MPPT Methodology, the MPPT methodologies are defined as Follow:

1. Indirect:

1.1. Fixed voltage method: with implies that a certain calculation is done to find MPP and then a voltage is applied to get such MPP, this method is very static and it is not used widely as it has proved is inefficient action with respect to many occasions.

1.2. Fractional Open Circuit Voltage Method: it is defined that VMPP is related the open circuit voltage calculated at the input of the MPPT Block, for each Harvesting method a certain K factor is defined, as 0.6-0.8 for PV and 0.5 for RF, piezo and TEG, so such method calculate the OCV and then relate it to such K factor and hence is calculate the VMPP required for MPP tracking, such method is widely used and it proved its efficiency in many Papers in literature as [3]-[6] and products in industry as the algorithms used in BQ25570 and AEM30940 (check Appendix), the FOCV assume that the power source is linear so in case of **<u>RF Energy harvesting</u>** such method can't be used as the Harvesting include a rectification using a nonlinear device (i.e. diode).

2. Direct:

2.1. <u>Hill Climbing:</u> it is a method that increment steps of voltage relative to the measured power till reaching the MPP and then is oscillates around the point till other perturbation case.

2.2. **Perturb and Observe:** it is a method that depend on perturbing the level of voltage and observing the power, if the power of the new perturbation is lower than that of the old, another perturbation level is taken into account to reach the MPP.

Hill Climbing Approach Explanation [7]:

The method used within this design of MPPT is the Hill climbing, for the illustration of the Hill climbing approach the following flow chart is presented for the general approaches of Hill climbing, this flow chart illustrates the hill climbing approach steps to achieve an MPP, first we start the sensing cycle, so we measure input voltage and current, then we measure the power, and from the power we set certain step of decision making, the first ask a question, is the old power and the new power are equal, if this is true then the algorithm is fixed on the MPP or a dummy point so we need to check again for the value of the power till a change occur and no action is taken, if a change took place in the power, as example the power is increased or decreased a decision, so we ask for the new power and old power, is the new power larger than old power or it might be smaller, so depending on the answer of the question, if the answer is yes to we ask for the level of voltage in such case

and if no we ask also for the level of voltage, in case the answer is yes, we would introduce a certain step controller step M (i.e. frequency step as introduced in the next sections), and a ΔM as a certain change in such step, if the recent voltage is higher than the previous voltage then the perturbation direction is in the direction of increase so require to receive such direction, so an order of M- ΔM is defined, and vice versa with M+ ΔM , same is for the case of No, this can be explained by referring to equation (2.1), (2.2) and (2.3).

$$if \ \frac{dP}{dV} < 0 \quad \to \quad (2.1)$$

The direction of perturbation of voltage vs the change in power is opposing so the voltage is required to be opposed, so $M=M-\Delta M$.

$$if \frac{dP}{dV} > 0 \quad \to \quad (2.2)$$

The direction of perturbation of voltage is with the direction of the change in power so the change in voltage is encouraged, so $M=M+\Delta M$.

$$if \frac{dP}{dV} = 0 \quad \rightarrow \quad (2.3)$$

At case of MPP no change is defined either for the voltage or for the power.

Relatively the flow chart of the Hill climbing is defined.

2.1.2 System Design, Definition and Specifications of MPPT [8],[9]:



Figure 2-2 Block Diagram of MPPT

Fig.3 Shows the block diagram of MPPT design, as explained in chapter 1, the system design of the full RF energy harvesting PMIC is dependable on the choice of the RF rectifier and the level is supports and same is for the MPPT, the MPPT is the first block to interface with the RF rectifier, and relating to the theory of maximum power, to achieve the maximum power transfer between any two points, matching is required, for RFIC matching is defined for a signal, in the PMIC matching is defined for DC level harvested power, So the matching is achieved by which $Z_{out}=Z_{in}$ with respect to rectifier and boost converter, respectively, the output impedance of the rectifier is of which the maximum power is achieved, in this Design we defined certain impedance values as Thevenin models of rectifiers assuming the maximization of power at such points, each test case for each point targets the matching with that impedance for maximization of power as explained in the next sections.

To illustrate the functionality of loop and the functionality of each block, we start first with the explanation of how the loop works:

- 1. The loop tries to match the input impedance of boost converter that allow the output load seen by rectifier to go into the curve at maximum power.
- 2. This is done by perturb and observe using a PFM loop.
- The loop changes the frequency of switching each major cycle and hence change the output voltage of the boost
- 4. Using the loop matching is achieved
- 5. A major cycle for MPPT operation is defined to include certain integer multiples of minor cycle.

So relative to such steps of operation the blocks are defined to allow those steps to be in action, the blocks are defined as follow:

1. Boost Converter: it is a DCM Boost Converter, DCM mode is used for the low power levels of the input, the Boost converter is used to be the perturbation unit of voltage as illustrated, in the section of the DCM Boost Converter, the perturbation in the boost is dependable on the frequency, so that the loop is called a PFM loop, the art of operation would be defined. 2. DCO: an oscillator is required for any boost converter to operate, a VCO is needed in this loop to define the perturbation relative to the decision made by the used controller, as the controller used is a digital controller so it is required for the system to have a DCO instead of VCO, to operate on the output bits used.

3. Digital Controller: the controller is a digital controller, but on a certain logic flow, to allow the fulfillment of the flow chart used, the digital controller is built using a Verilog-A code, and it would be defined by certain Verilog code using an external IC as illustrated in the first chapter.

4. Hysteresis Comparator: to make a decision using digital controller, we require to know the voltage level between new and old case, this block is used as to approach matching, ideally if input and rectifier are matched, this is relative to the conventional flow chart defined for Hill Climbing approach, as to check on the most recent voltage and the previous voltage, as the boost converter introduce a rippling output so in result to avoid any problems in defining the change in voltage a hysteresis window is introduced to avoid racing in the output of comparator, the width of hysteresis window is defined relative to the ripples level of the boost converter, and as the boost converter is connected to a DCO of different frequencies, as the maximum ripples occur at maximum frequency, the ripples in voltage level is defined for the maximum frequency.

5. LPF and Storage units: Cs1 and Cs2 are two storage caps to store values of the old and new and the signal overlaps on them relative to the major cycle, the LPF is used to decrease the ripple and so make the specifications on the hysteresis window more relaxed, the order of the filter is dependable on the level of voltage ripples.



Figure 2-3 Matching the source and load impedance

To match the source and load we must define the value of the impedance in the converter and from the analysis of the converter the following equation (2.4) is defined:

Input impedance for DCM boost:

$$Z_{in} = \frac{2L}{D^2} * f_{clk} \to \quad (2.4)$$

L: value of inductor used in the boost converter.

D: value of the duty cycle of the output clock signal of the DCO.

For a fixed L and D, to change the input impedance the value of clock frequency is changed and so this loop is called a **PFM controlled loop**.

2.1.3 DCM Boost Converter [10]:

2.1.3.1 Art of work and Design concepts:



Figure 2-4 DCM Boost Converter

For a DCM Boost converter, as the level of voltage is very low, the level of current charging the L and then passing to charge C is very low, as the level of the DC is low, the ripples may go into negative values, this lead to an opposing direction of flow of charges from the capacitor into the circuitry leading to increase in losses, which is very critical in our case, so it is required to cut the negative levels as shown in Fig.7, this is done by using D_1 .



Figure 2-5 DCM Boost action on current ripples

To analyze such structure we define two modes, a charge and discharge modes, also we should define the CCM (continuous charging mode), referring to [10] for the analysis of the CCM, we define the CCM and DCM as follow:

CCM:

$$:: V_L = \frac{Ldi}{dt} \to i = \int \frac{V_L}{L} dt \to (2.5)$$

in CCM, we only have two modes of operation, a charge and discharge, in case of diode is off (L charge mode):

$$V_L = V_g \quad \& \quad i_c = -\frac{V}{R} \rightarrow \quad (2.6)$$

While in case of L discharging and C charging:

$$V_L = V_g - V$$
 & $i_c = I - \frac{V}{R} \rightarrow$ (2.7)



Figure 2-6 Modes of operation a CCM Boost converter



Figure 2-7 combining the two modes with the duty cycle action

In Fig.9, by combining both the voltage on inductor and current in capacitor, for full cycle of the input switching signal, two output curves are introduced as shown, consider first curve of inductor, it is desired to for the second balance of inductor voltage:

$$\int V_L(t) dt = V_g DT_s + (V_g - V)D'T_s \quad where \quad D' = 1 - D \quad \rightarrow (2.8)$$

For balance to take place, the output of equation 2.8 is equated to zero, and the result of the equation define the conversion ratio in case of CCM,

$$\frac{V}{V_g} = \frac{1}{1-D} \rightarrow (2.9)$$

Equation 2.9 highlights the effect of the duty cycle, as the duty cycle increase the conversion ration increase allowing higher boosting action (action 1).



Figure 2-8 action of duty cycle vs the conversion ratio value

To determine the inductor current dc component, a capacitor charge balance is performed.

$$\int_{0}^{T_{s}} i_{c}(t)dt = \frac{-V}{R}DT_{s} + \left(I - \frac{V}{R}\right)(1 - D)T_{s} = 0 \quad \to (2.10)$$

From equation 2.10 =, the capacitor charge balance is done to equate 2.10 to zero and hence the dc component is found,

$$I = \frac{V}{RD'} \rightarrow (2.11)$$
$$I = \frac{V_g}{{D'}^2 R} \rightarrow (2.12)$$

From the equations defined above, it is desired to find the ripples on inductor current and voltage to define, when we should define a DCM Boost converter and the levels of ripples allowed in the output and the tuning parameters in the design.

To define the ripples on the inductor current, define the equations as follow:

$$V_L(t) = L \frac{di_L}{dt} \rightarrow (2.13)$$
$$\frac{di_L}{dt} = \frac{V_L(t)}{L} = \frac{V_g - V}{L} \rightarrow (2.14)$$
$$\Delta i_L = \frac{V_g}{2L} DT_s \rightarrow (2.15)$$

So, from equation 2.15, it is defined that the parameters affecting the ripples level is L, V_g , D and T_s , this would hence require to increase L to decrease the ripples, the input voltage range is a low voltage range so it doesn't support a large ripple case, as the frequency of switching is decrease to allow lower switching losses this would contribute in the ripples to increase it and the duty cycle is kept 0.5 to compromise, we compromise with value of L vs frequency, and to determine the voltage ripples, we define the ripples on capacitor, this is by checking the following:

$$\frac{dv_c(t)}{dt} = \frac{i_c(t)}{C} \to (2.16)$$

For first interval,

$$\frac{dv_c(t)}{dt} = -\frac{V}{RC} \to (2.17)$$

For second interval,

$$\frac{dv_c(t)}{dt} = \frac{i_c(t)}{c} = \frac{I}{C} - \frac{V}{RC} \rightarrow (2.18)$$

From both equations, and integrating and computing the change in the voltage, we achieve the following result:

$$\Delta V = \frac{V}{2RC} DT_s \to (2.19)$$

From equation 2.19, we set certain points and definitions, the value of ripples on the output is relative to the value of output voltage V, so as the output voltage increase, the ripples increase, the value of C and R used also decrease level, the controllable here is C as it takes the value of the super capacitor, the D and T_s are pre defined for the ripples on inductor current, so also as they increase ripples on output voltage, they increase ripples on output current.

From the previous equations we defined set of values of some parameters as defined in the table 2.1-1.

To account for the effect of the DC resistance of the boost converter another level of analysis is made, the model for this analysis is presented in fig. 2.1-10

L	4.7 mH, DCR=8.5Ω (coil craft)
С	Super capacitor (Murata) 2µH
R	Seen from the Next Block (~10KΩ)

Table 2.1-1 Values of components of the Boost converter



Figure 2-9 Model of the DC resistance

The DC resistance is defined with respect to certain analysis points, where its action is taken into account to allow the system to adapt to what it takes.

For the charging model of L (2.20) and discharging of L for C (2.21), we define the analysis points as follow:

$$v_L(t) = V_g - IR_l - V \rightarrow (2.20)$$
$$i_c(t) = I - \frac{V}{R} \rightarrow (2.21)$$

By calculating the charge balance on inductor and capacitor we achieve the conversion ratio as follow:

$$\frac{V}{V_g} = \frac{\frac{1}{D'}}{1 + \frac{R_L}{{D'}^2 R}} \to (2.22)$$

A factor is added defined by $\frac{R_L}{R}$ which introduce to change the functionality of the conversion ratio defined before, this is defined by certain curves that define the stability of any control loop, the curves are presented in following figure.

To allow the circuit to stabilize without any problems, we may go for two approaches as D at high values push to an opposite change leading to a positive feedback loop and an oscillation condition may appear so we define the D for small values and check for this in a PWM system, but for the proposed MPPT we define a PFM based loop which is stabilized by nature choosing a reasonable value.



Figure 2-10 Stability curves vs the dc resistance relativity values

Using certain equivalent models, we can define the efficiency of the boost converter:

$$\eta = \frac{P_{in}}{P_{out}} = \frac{V_g I}{V D' I} = \frac{V}{V_g} D' \to (2.23)$$

As duty cycle increase, relative to the relation, the efficiency decrease, and as the output voltage increase, the efficiency increase, and if we take into account the inductor resistance, we find that efficiency achieved is expressed in equation 2.24.

$$\eta = \frac{1}{1 + \frac{R_L}{{D'}^2 R}} \to (2.24)$$

As expected from the simple definition of the inductor resistance, that as it increases the efficiency would decrease, so Low DCR series of coil craft is selected as explained in table 2.1.

To extend the used model to be matching a full real case of boost converter, we should consider within the efficiency the factors of the switching losses and the conduction losses, the conduction losses would be due to the non-ideal resistance of the switches(MOS or Diode), while the switching accompanies the switching done on one of the gates.

Those models would complicate the form of efficiency, so to illustrate we define the critical tuning parameters that may affect the system.

$$P_{loss_{switching}} = CVDD^2 f_{switching} \rightarrow (2.25)$$

$$P_{loss_{conduction}} = I^2 R_{on_{Mos}} \rightarrow (2.26)$$

From equation 2.25 and 2.26, as switching frequency decrease, losses decrease but the ripples would increase and so we defined a certain tradeoff to compromise, the second tradeoff is between the sizing of the MOS for low on resistance and low gate capacitance to define low losses.

$$C_{gate} \alpha WL$$
 , $R_{on} \alpha \frac{L}{W}$

So, for the best case, we minimize the L, and then we simulate for the optimum value of W.

For the DCM boost operation, also a certain point of analysis is required to define certain constrains to allow such mood to operate with no worries or problems, for the DCM we define 3 modes of operation in the system, and with a condition on DC current vs the ripple level for those modes to exist.

$$I > \Delta i_{l} \rightarrow CCM$$
$$I < \Delta i_{l} \rightarrow DCM$$

As we defined previously the value, for the $I < \Delta i_L$, $DD'^2 > \frac{2L}{RT_s}$, so from those equations we define two other parameters, *K* and *K*_{crit}, and relatively we set a condition on the R value which is the input load of the preceding block.



Figure 2-11 Modes of operation of DCM boost converter
the extra mode of operation is the hold mode, which means that no charging or discharging of the inductor or capacitor would occur, so we hold the charge and avoid any reverse motion leading to extra losses, by solving the voltage-second balance, a new expression is acquired, same as what was made previously, same for the capacitor charge balance, and by calculating the values of those calculations, a new conversion ratio is acquired.



Figure 2-12 the voltage across time on the inductor

$$\frac{V}{V_g} = \frac{1 \pm \sqrt{1 + \frac{D_1^2}{K}}}{2} \text{ where } K = \frac{2L}{RT_s} \to (2.27)$$

And from the conversion ratio and the current values across the load we can define the input load seen by the converter as:

$$Z_{in} = \frac{2L}{D^2} f_s \to (2.28)$$

This equation is the soul of the MPPT as what was discussed in the first section.

2.1.3.2 <u>Diode implementation and switching MOSFET:</u>



Figure 2-13 DCM with diode implemented as PMOS

The diode is modeled as a diode connected PMOS, the bulk is connected on the capacitor of the VDD formation to keep the diodes between bulk and source or drain in reverse biasing action, and as $R_{on} \propto \frac{L}{W}$, we are required to minimize the on resistance for conduction losses so the L is set to its minimum level, since we might have an overshoots in the start of the MPPT loop operation so we use high gain devices (thick oxide devices) to keep the MOS and Loop safe at operation, and for its switching action in the DCM operation, the W is simulated to get the min. net losses for this device and reported in table 2-2, this is made for the PMOS, while the NMOS as a switching MOS, there is two aspects of design, the conduction losses and the switching losses, so we define the device as standard device not subjected to high overshoots as it is isolated from the path of the capacitor, the L is set to its min. value, while the W is simulated for optimum losses.

Transistor	W	L		
M1	8 mm	350 nm		
M2	4 mm	130 nm		

 Table 2.1-2 Sizing for boost converter

The simulations to get this optimum value of sizing is done across the band of frequencies used, it is logical that the highest frequency point is the point of highest losses and hence at designing this loop we start perturbation from lowest frequency to avoid reaching the highest losses, which lead to highest quiescent power.

Another method for implementing the diode, is active diode implementations using a level sensitive comparator and other devices helping the system to operate with an active diode implementation.

To sum up for the design aspects of the boost converter, we define a table of parameters that define the requirements for such block.

Parameter	Achieved Spec
f _{clk}	1266 Hz: 17838 Hz
Perturbation steps	16
Major Clock division	64
Input voltage range	50 mV: 500 mV
Matching Range	100: 800 Ω

Table 2.1-3 List of specs for Boost operation

2.1.4 Switching circuitry, filtering and storing:

A LPF is used so that it can filter the ripples of the output of boost and decrease them to help the hysteresis comparator to have more relaxed design specifications, the LPF is a simple RC filter, where value of R and C is set relative to the frequency of filtering, since the lowest frequency for boost operation is 1266 Hz, which is low so that R and C are set off-chip, the output of the filter is feed to a switching circuit with major cycle, where new and old voltage are compared, the switch design is critical for power consumption, so we compromise between different switch types.



Figure 2-14 Switching circuitry

A switch can be NMOS, PMOS or transmission gate, for an NMOS switch, the definition of the V_{gs} is defining the NMOS as a strong logic '1' creator but a poor logic '0' adapter, this is defined for the requirements of gate, drain and source relative to that of threshold, same applies for the PMOS, but in a reverse way, so the PMOS is a strong '1' but a weak '0', so for a strong '1' and strong '0', we combine both cases using a transmission gate, in our case as the transmission gate would reflect a complexity and more power consumption, so we used a conventional NMOS switch, that would not introduce a large error in the loop.



2.1.5 <u>Hysteresis comparator [11]:</u>

Figure 2-15 Hysteresis comparator using current unbalance

To define the functionality of the hysteresis comparator, the following analysis is made into use, where each transistor is set in a certain operation pattern and mode to allow the operation with reasonable hysteresis window at bias of 10 nA. For $V_{in}^+ > V_{in}^- + V_{hys}^+$, we require the output to go high as indication for the output voltage is high enough to be differentiated from the low level, the output of derived by inverters that define a strong logic'1' and logic '0' for proper operation of the digital controller.

For $V_{in}^+ < V_{in}^- - V_{hys}^-$, the output is low, and hence the controller would define the large and the small changes within the voltage to take the decision of perturbation.

To define the hysteresis levels and the window with respect to the design aspects and steps, the following analysis is defined:

$$I_4 = aI_3$$
 , $I_5 = bI_6$, and $I_3 = I_6$ @ equilibrium \rightarrow (2.29)

$$I_{M_1} = I_3 + bI_6, I_{M_2} = aI_3 + I_6, I_{M_1} + I_{M_2} = I_3 + bI_6 + aI_3 + I_6 = I_{bias} \rightarrow (2.30)$$

From equation 2.29 and 2.30 we defined the current distribution and the equilibrium that may lead to cross the borders of the hysteresis window, to fully define those points and the window design aspects, we should go further in defining the operation of each transistor.

For M1,0 $< V_{gs_1} < V_{th}$ for subthreshold operation, this can be defined relative to the level of current subject to M1, same apply for M2, the difference between M1 and M2 in the gate voltage define a change in the value of the current across the two branches which lead to the loss in equilibrium, and so output goes positive or negative with a gain relatively, as the used operation is subthreshold so the gain of first stage is the highest gain and approach the intrinsic gain.

At subthreshold,

$$g_m = \frac{I_d}{nv_t} \to (2.31)$$

Where n is a certain constant and v_t is a temperature dependant voltage, $v_t = \frac{\kappa T}{q}$

And to define the requirements of other transistors,

$M1, M2 \rightarrow$ subthershold operation

$M3, M4, M5, M6 \rightarrow Saturation operation$

Our concerns is the Systematic offset and random offset so, for systematic offset, dependency goes for λ , the L is set to its maximum limit (20 μ m), and hence the speed is not a requirement this can be done, and as random offset is defined for $\frac{A_{v_t}}{\sqrt{WL}}$, so the W is hence increased to redefine this at the input pair.

By solving the equations and the current balance we can reach the final form of the hysteresis comparator:

as
$$I = I_{D_o} \frac{W}{L} e^{\frac{V_{g_s}}{v_t}}$$
, and from equation 2.29 and 2.30,

$$V_{hys_+} = \xi v_t \ln\left(\frac{a+1}{b+1}\right) \text{, and } V_{hys_-} = \xi v_t \ln\left(\frac{b+1}{a+1}\right) \to (2.32)$$

The hysteresis window is set for certain b and a factor to compensate on the ripples in the boost converter, relative to the different changes and frequency levels that require such action to be taken.



Figure 2-16 typical hysteresis window

The optimum window of compensation is defined for 20 mV, and as shown in Fig.2.1-17, the window suffer no offset relatively, Monte Carlo simulations are performed to define the change in random offset, the 3σ is 6 mV obtained by a simulation on another technology of 130 nm UMC due to the failure of this kit to provide a Monte Carlo simulations.

Fast Fast	Vth-n, Vth-p Decreased MI. M2 may shift from subthreshold	Gain, V_{hys_+} , and V_{hys}
Fast Slow	Vth-n dec and Vth-p increase, this may shift M1,M2 from Subthreshold and M3,M4,M5,M6 from Saturation	Gain, Current Mirroring Ratio, $V_{hys_{+}}$ and V_{hys}
Slow Fast	Vth-n increase and Vth-p Decrease, MI, M2 may shift from subthreshold to off	Failure in performing the comparing
Slow Slow	Vth-n and Vth-p increased MI, M2 may shift from subthreshold to off	Failure in performing the comparing
High Temp (120)	$V_{hys_{+}} = \zeta V_T \ln \frac{a+1}{b+1}, \ V_T \alpha Temp$ Vth- n, p decrease	Hysteresis window increase Gain, Current Mirroring Ratio, V_{hys_+} and V_{hys}
Low Temp (-40)	$V_{hys_{+}} = \zeta V_T \ln \frac{a+1}{b+1}, \ V_T \alpha Temp$ Vth- n, p increased	Hysteresis window decreased, Failure in performing the comparing

Table 2.1-4 Process variation for hysteresis comparator

2.1.6 Digital Controller:

The digital controller is defined to perform the flow chart and the steps for the perturbation in the loop, a good controller can allow the system to track the required MPP without losing it or oscillating in the processes, the controller is very critical in the loop as it is what connect everything and define every point.

A digital block is critical to stand beside an analog block, a digital block is critical in a system and it need to have a consideration for it's routing and for it's power lines, so to avoid all those problems, digital controller is built using a VerilogA modeling code, and it is proposed to be written using a Verilog or VHDL code on an FPGA interfacing with the PMIC or on an Arduino nano within the SOC.



Figure 2-17 Flow chart of the MPPT loop

From the flow chart shown, we defined the states of the controller that would help it to operate the loop, those states are introduced in steps as follow:

- 1. Start and Store V_{test.}
- 2. Perturb DCO frequency in one direction (chosen as increase).
- 3. Check if New Vs Old voltage is larger or smaller (check CMP is 1 or 0).
- 4. Perturb according to the CMP.
- 5. Store new V_{test} and cycle up from step 3.

To translate those steps in logic functions we defined the step in a new shape as follow:

- 1. Initialize code as All 0's.
- 2. Increment code by 1 at start up cycle.
- 3. If CMP=1, increment code.
- 4. If CMP=0, decrement code.
- 5. If Code is All 1's, no increment and only decrement.
- 6. If Code is All 0's no decrement and only increment.

This can be defined by a 4-bit synchronous up/down counter with hold states at all 0's and all 1's, and a reset point, synchronous reset and asynchronous reset.

The counter start up point differs from different cases as to start at all 1's or all 0's or intermediate, as what was brought in earlier sections that it is required to get a low power start point to avoid losses, so with respect to the design of the DCO defined in the next section, the start point is defined as all 1's instead of all 0's while maintaining all other control steps and states.

2.1.7 <u>DCO:</u>

The digital controller oscillator topology used is a current starved ring oscillator with a switched capacitor bank to set the frequency relative to the input bits, to define this topology it is required to define the functionality of a simple ring oscillator and then a current starved ring oscillator.

2.1.7.1 <u>Ring oscillator functionality:</u>

A simple ring oscillator is defined as a cascaded inverter of ODD number to define a negative feedback topology, a simple inverter has gain of $-(gm_n + gm_p)(ro_n//ro_p)$ so an odd cascaded ring oscillator produce a negative feedback case, the originality in the oscillatory profile of such topology is defined as follow:



Figure 2-18 3 stages ring oscillator

to define the functionality of such structure, let's consider the relation between two simple stages:



Figure 2-19 simple two stages of the ring oscillator

1. Assume NMOS and PMOS are matched, $\frac{W}{L}$)_P = $2\frac{W}{L}$)_N, $\mu_n = 2\mu_p$, $K_n = K_p$, so the drive capability is equal, as subjecting a step function on input, the output would be defined to charge a capacitor with respect to the resistance seen within the branch, a simplification is made for the capacitor seen to have the form of $C_L = \frac{5}{2}C_{ox}(W_nL_n + W_pL_p) \rightarrow (2.33)$

While the resistance of the branch is defined as a simple on resistance branch

$$R_{on} = \frac{1}{\frac{\mu_n C_{ox} W}{L} \left(V_{gs} - V_{th} \right)} \to (2.34)$$

A simple inverter would be subjected to the charging of the load capacitor and relative to the on resistance we define a certain delay time $\tau_p \alpha RC$, for a 3-stage ring oscillator, we define 3 τ_p for on state, and 3 τ_p for off state, so the frequency of oscillation is define as:

$$f_{osc} = \frac{1}{6\tau_p} \to (2.35)$$

2.1.7.2 <u>Current starved ring oscillator:</u>



Figure 2-20 current starved VCO model

The current starved VCO is a ring oscillator controlled by set of current mirrors(sources) that increase or decrease the frequency by increasing the action of charge and discharge, this can be defined relative to the conventional ring oscillator where by defining the current action with respect to the regions of operation of such system relating to the analysis given in [12]:

$$\tau_p \propto \frac{C_{tot}V_{ctrl}N}{I_D} \rightarrow (2.36)$$

$$f_{osc} \propto \frac{I_d}{NC_{tot}V_{ctrl}} \rightarrow (2.37)$$

It is defined that the oscillation frequency is dependent on the current used and the number of stages and total capacitance which is defined by equation 2.33 and the control voltage, there exist relative to such equation numerous numbers of design procedures to defined such DCO, one is to use a DAC that control the control voltage, but relatively DAC is a power hungry block which violate the requirements of the power consumption, then we can make a switching criteria of stages where different stages is added, but also this would add up to the power consumption and power budget, it was found that the optimum way of perturbation is to change the total capacitance seen by each stage using a bank of capacitors, the full circuit is shown in fig.2.1-22.



Figure 2-21 DCO implementation

Relating to equation 2.37, defining the bank of capacitors is relative to what C_{tot} resembles as a value, the W_n and L_n relatively also the PMOS sizing is set low for a low total gate capacitance and in simulation C_{gs} is measured to identify the value of total capacitance as it is the highest contributor, at biasing of 75 nA, it is found to be of 2.6 fF value, the value of the capacitors are chosen relative to the division value (1pF,2pF,4pF,8pF) those values are set to have a relative constant step and equal spacing in the matching between each two points of perturbation, and the pF value fully eliminate the total gate capacitance contribution leading to a good termination. \backslash



Figure 2-22 Perturbation in frequency vs bits of the digital controller

2.2 Integration of the MPPT Loop:

Reaching the specs of each block, integrating the blocks with a clever technique is essential for a good operation, this means analyzing the load effects on different points, building the MPPT loop to be compatible with other block in system, and testing the full loop as input and output, and defining the overall efficiency and tracking efficiency and limits of matching and full specs of the system.

2.2.1 Gate driver:

To define loading problems, we define what is the blocks within the loop that may have a malfunctioning profile due to loading, a very critical point in the system is between the switching NMOS in the boost and the DCO, the switching NMOS would have a very large capacitance due to the large values of width, this mat lead to a capacitive loading on the DCO, shifting the frequency range into a different location that may lead to very critical problem, to help solve this problem, a gate driver is used to drive the large capacitance, this is illustrated as follow:



Figure 2-23 Gate driver between boost converter and DCO

For a gate driver, we cascade the inverters in a pattern where the sizing is taken into an ascending pattern in sizing, this is to decrease the action on the on resistance, and to allow a stepped isolation without leading to any glitches in the system.

2.2.2 <u>Results and simulations of the loop:</u>

To test the loop of MPPT a Thevenin model is used to model the antenna and rectifier existing before the PMIC, 5 test cases are made, 3 are from the survey presented in the first chapter, and two extremes for very low and very high levels of power, those tests set the general specs and description of the system used.

Shown in table 2.2-1, the results of each test case and it's description, where each test is compared with respect to the maximization occurred, the output power and loop efficiency, the quiescent power and the output voltage.

Test Number	V_{th}	R_{th}	Max.	Input	Tracking	System	Quiescent	Output	Power
Number			TOwer	TOwer	1	η	power	vonage	Output
1	400	250	160	155	97%	55%	393 nW	981	84.8
	mV	Ω	μW	μW				mV	μW
2	500	500Ω	125	121	97%	63%	380.5 nW	874	76.37
	mV		μW	μW				mV	μW
3	500	250	250	246	98%	44%	372.4 nW	1 V	108.3
	mV	Ω	μW	μW					μW
4	200	300	33.3	30 µW	91%	64%	372.6 nW	442	19.55
	mV	Ω	μW					mV	μW
5	700	300	408.33	406	99%	40%	386.7 nW	1.265	160
	mV	Ω	μW	μW				V	μW

Table 2.2-1 Comparison between different models of testing

2.2.2.1 First Test:



Figure 2-24 400 mV, 250 Ω test model results

In Fig. 2.2-2, the results of the simulation for the Loop at the defined model is shown, at the first steps of operation, the controller start with all 1's and then it decrements till reaching 0011 and then increment to 0100 and ripple between those two numbers, this means that the loop reached an MPP point and made a hold point on it, the hold point is a rippling point, the comparator action is shown within the simulation, it ripples continuously at first as a start up of boost is analogic to that of a LPF which lead to a fighting new and old voltage, as the division in the major clock is high enough to pass such ripples, yet, an overshoot occur at startup, this is a very critical action that may lead to a disastrous break down effect to the circuits supported by such VDD, the option to solve such action is a

battery protection block to model al voltage changes and avoid the overvoltage condition introducing a fourth mode of operation to the DCM at output voltage greater than 1.2v, and to avoid this action to harm the boost converter, thick oxide devices are used.

As the art of operation is defined, for the spec's definition, we define certain calculation steps as follow:

- 1. For maximum power, $P_{max} = \frac{V^2}{4R_{in}} = 160 \ \mu W$.
- 2. For the calculation of the input power, we can define $P_{in} = V_{avg} \times I_{avg} = 155.2 \,\mu W$, An important point of interest is to differentiate between different values of input power calculations as rms or average, at DC, rms and average are the same, they are defined for same case, but their definition differs in case of finding a certain point of change as ripples, that is why most of the power management systems fight over which definition of both wins, it is widely defined that the average is taken instead of the rms, as it defines the ripples better and hence the DC component of the V and I.
- 3. $\eta_{matching} = \frac{P_{in}}{P_{MPP}} = 97\%$
- 4. Quiescent power is defined instead of current, as there exists a path of switching that consume extra power than that of the current consumed in the system, so defining a power term is better in this case than current, it is measured in this test to be 393 nW.
- 5. $\eta_{System} = \frac{P_{out}}{P_{in} + P_Q} = 54.5\%$, where $P_{out} = 84.8241 \,\mu W$, and output voltage is 981

mV as average.

2.2.3 Other Test cases:







Figure 2.2-4 test 3 Simulation results



Figure 2-26 Extreme test case for low power



Figure 2.2-5 extreme test case for high power

for the shown four test cases, we can define different specs as shown in table 2.2-1, those specs are defined relative to the ability of the loop to approach matching, for test case 2, we can find that the system efficiency has highly increase, and the quiescent power decreased than that of first test, the matching efficiency is the same as first test, there exist no overshoots and the output voltage is within our specs and requirements with value of 873.9 mV, at boosting up the power to its maximum limit, it is found that the last point in regulation is that of test 3, the third test is defined at such point, with power of $250 \,\mu$ W, reaching a high matching efficiency, but high system losses due to the high frequency action, going beyond this extreme would be critical as found in the extreme test of high power, the matching in this test is very good reaching around 99%, but due to the subjection of this point to a high frequency action continuously with no regulations, losses are high enough to get a system efficiency of 40%, and at low power extreme case the losses would be very low, and hence we boost up the efficiency of system to 64% but the matching efficiency is 91%, the best test case is the second test, so this point is defined as the highest capability of such MPPT at the typical design case.

Parameter	Specifications Achieved
f _{clk}	1266 Hz: 17838 Hz
Perturbation steps	16
LPF order	2 ^{<i>nd</i>}
Hysteresis window	15 mV
Major Clock division	64
Tracking Efficiency	95%
Highest achieved Efficiency	64% at -5 dBm

Table 2.2-2 General achieved specs of the MPPT loop

2.2.4 Corner simulations:

A corner simulation is defined as a simulation to define the changes occurring within a certain process and temperature actions, this is defined in process for four cases as fast fast, fast slow, slow fast, slow slow, the fast and slow is relative to the NMOS and PMOS, and it is defined as fast or slow relative to an inverter model, defining its speed action as fast or slow, this is relative to the threshold voltage, as threshold increase, speed decrease, while as the threshold decrease, the speed may increase, this can be related to the rules of the on resistance and the total gate capacitance.



Figure 2-27 corner simulations vs change in threshold voltage

For the temperature, we define another two extremes, one is a $-40^{\circ}C$ and $125^{\circ}C$, those levels of temperature are the points where the subjection of the IC may go, the threshold voltage is function in temperature as a inverse response action, this also define a change in the circuits operation relatively.



Figure 2-28 threshold voltage change with temperature

Summing up both those actions, we defined different simulations for the different blocks of the system, each block is simulated for the four actions, and the following results are defined for each block.

2.2.4.1 DCO corner simulations:

To define the changes in DCO due to corners, the threshold voltage does lead to cause certain changes in the operation of the current mirror, as changes in the compliance voltage and in the mirror ratio, also the inverters operation would differ as the threshold voltage is a contributor in the on resistance value hence it directly changes the frequency, summing up all those point, we can reach an estimation for the changes observed in the simulation.

we defined the fast fast, and the slow slow as they are the most significant to define, the fast fast variations vs the temperature variation, at fast fast, the frequency variation at -40 degrees is -254.3 Hz while at 125 degrees it takes value of 600 Hz, those variations are defined for the range reports in the previous section, which define shifts that are not that much, this variations would also be compensated by the adaptivity of the loop.

Transient Response



Figure 2-30 DCO fast fast simulations for -40 and 125°C



Figure 2-29 DCO slow slow simulations for -40 and 125°C

To define if the corner simulations are critical or no, we define if the matching is violated or no, and the matching is not violated as the change in the steps would no break the matching sequence by any means, also the values of the capacitors may vary with the PT actions on the system.

2.2.4.2 Hysteresis comparator changes:

Same simulations apply for the comparator, the hysteresis window as defined in equation 2.32 is fully dependable of the temperature due to the V_t factor, so if we defined the variations of temperature, we find that they would contribute very harshly on the window, not only the temperature but the variations in the current balance due to threshold voltage may lead to critical problems of the window, the problems existing are defined with two aspects, the hysteresis window would increase very large, or the hysteresis window would decrease very large, if increased very large, the decision making is of large errors, while for the small window, ringing may occur due to the large ripples, so we compromise in the hysteresis comparator and define which is better, and also a calibration loop is proposed that may be added in further versions of such IC.



Figure 2-31 Hysteresis comparator Fast Fast variations



Figure 2-32 Hysteresis comparator Slow Slow variations

It is shown in fig. 2.2-9 and 2.2-10, that the variations reach critical values even after calibration in the design, some variations may indeed lead to the failure of the loop, so a sensing loop was proposed to compensate on such system and design the system for better operation, this loop is planned to be in our future work within this PMIC design.

2.2.4.3 Boost converter simulations:

For the boost converter, it is defined that the system used is dependable on two MOSFETS, the level of ripples and the power consumption depend mainly on there setting, so the process and temperature variations may by all means, affect such system, defining certain changes, the least to be affected by those changes is the boost, but they may lead to changes in it's performance, this can be analyzed by the values seen in Fig. 2.2-11 and 2.2-12.

Transient Response



Figure 2-33 Fast Fast variations of boost converter



Figure 2-34 Slow Slow variations of Boost converter

2.2.5 *Layout:*

2.2.5.1 Layout of Hysteresis comparator:

To define a layout, set of rules and techniques are required to be followed to get a perfect layout satisfying the conditions, one of the most important layout considerations, is parasitic introduced in lines, between lines, in MOS devices, in Capacitors and between on-chip and off-chip devices, also matching between devices and decreasing the spacing and allowing the actions on the IC to be consistent on all points, noise considerations and avoidance of cross talk between lines, floor planning, all of those points define a perfect layout or a bad layout, so those considerations are the basic starting point for any layout design to reach it's requirements, in this layout design, parasitic are considered in decreasing the length of lines, and trying to work on upper metals for critical paths, for the matching common centroid is considered with a cross-quad sequence, and decreasing the

spacing between all devices, power lines and different lines are tapered to allow higher power capability and improve performance, an other aspects are defined with in the layout design.

For our design of hysteresis comparator, Different considerations are made, first and most important was the antenna rule, due to the large dimensions of certain mosfets than others, long lines are used to make the interconnections, those lines more than they may contribute certain resistance that lead to losses and bad contribution, they lead to antenna effects, so before each line interfacing with a gate of a MOS, we go higher in layers and then lower to the poly layer, this allow the termination of problems of antenna effect.

Another consideration is the layer fill rule or the density errors, those are solved by certain CAD tools to allow a consistent distribution of metal all over the IC.

Matching is defined as illustrated in the first of this section using cross-quad by using sequence of A B B A and then B A A B for the input pair, while the current mirrors already contribute the min. width so no matching is defined relatively.



Figure 2-35 Layout of hysteresis comparator

To avoid parasitic routing is done to keep coupling between lines as low as possible and avoid the ripples on the power lines to contribute for the input pair lines to avoid the ringing of the comparator and hence the instability of the entire loop.

The design is define to pass all the DRCs that are considered with our standards and certain DRCs are not passed as layer fill, vertex error and IC corners errors, LVS is performed and the layout fully matches the schematic with all it's nodes and points, and the as no triple well technology is used, no source is connected to body and this action is simulated for the typical and designed for the required specs, and hence the layout is expected to match the requirements of the schematic, PEX simulations are performed to extract the parasitic and simulations for hysteresis comparator is made, the result in Fig. 2.2-14 illustrate the changes and actions of layout.



Figure 2-36 Post-Layout simulations for hysteresis window

2.2.5.2 DCO Layout

Same aspects of design for the Comparator is subjected to the DCO, the DCO layout design and results are define with respect to the change in the on resistance and the capacitance leading to change in the frequency, also glitches or ripples that may exist within the cycle of the DCO, the DCO layout have solved that no glitches would occur, the frequency at 0000 decrease from 1266 to 932 Hz while at 1111 the frequency decrease from 17838 Hz to 15213 Hz, the deviation may lead to change in the decision region from input impedances shifting the range further to lower values, also the sharpness leaking would lead to problems in switching so this action should be compensated by using extra inverter stages or modifying the layout, this is planned for future work on the PMIC.



Figure 2-37 DCO layout



Figure 2-38 Post-layout result for DCO output for 0000 digital input



Figure 2-39 DCO output for 1111 input

CHAPTER 3. OUTPUT REGULATION LOOP

This chapter discusses the design of the ultra-low power output regulation loop that is used to regulate the output voltage of the IC since the output of the MPPT stage is not regulated. it demonstrates harvesting with acceptable efficiency (~ 65%) starting from 210 mV input sources. Design of the system used as output regulation loop and each block used in it are presented along with its layout and post-layout simulation results.

3.1 Problem Statement

The challenge is to design an ultra-low power output regulation system that regulates the output voltage at 1.2 V over wide input voltage range (output from MPPT block) and wide load current range with acceptable efficiencies and acceptable voltage ripples.

3.2 DC-DC Conversion Topologies

This section shows different dc-dc conversion topologies and different control techniques used to regulate the output at certain desired output voltage. The advantage and disadvantages of each topology are discussed and based on this the architecture used in the output regulation block is decided according to the requirement discussed in the problem statement.

To regulate the output, a voltage regulator is needed. A voltage regulator is an electronic device that produces a steady and fixed output voltage, independently of its input voltage and output current. In reality, any voltage regulator has a range of input voltages for which

it works, a certain level of efficiency and a limited amount of power it can handle. Therefore, a careful selection of the voltage regulator must be made depending on the application it is for [14].

As shown in Figure 3-1, a voltage regulator consists of a power processor, a controller, and a voltage reference. The input power coming from the supply is converted by the power processor and provided to the load [15]. It consists of power electronic devices like MOSFETs, BJTs, Diodes, ... etc. In order to keep the output at a certain set point, the feedback loop compares the output voltage of the power processor with a reference voltage value, and acts on the power processor so that the error between the two are minimized. Voltage regulators can be roughly divided in two categories: linear regulators and switching regulators. While linear regulators dissipate power when dropping the voltage





level, switching regulators transfer almost all energy from input to output. We'll discuss each of them and show their pros and cons. Then choose from them the better match for the requirements.

3.2.1 Linear Voltage Regulators

To understand how linear regulators work, imagine that the output voltage is the level of water in a tank and the output current is a leakage. To maintain the level in the tank, the same flux of water must enter the tank as the one that is leaking. To control the influx, we have two options: either strangle the influx to match the leakage or divert any influx that may be exceeding the leakage to another path.

Similarly, linear regulators can work in two ways. The circuit shown in Fig. 3-2 shows the concept of a linear regulator, where RL is the load resistance. The equation that model this circuit is: $V_{out} = V_{in} - R_s(I_l + I_z)$



Figure 3-2: Linear regulator core

The variables the regulator does not control are Vin and I_l . So, V_{out} can be regulated at the desired value regardless of Vin and I_l by varying either R_s or by varying I_z (can be varied by varying R_z). Therefore, it can either "strangle the input current" (change R_s) or
divert any extra current from the input current to ground (change I_z) to keep V_{out} always at the same value. The regulators that have R_s as a variable resistance, which is in series with the load are called series regulators, while the ones that fix R_s but create a shunt through I_z are called shunt regulators.

Let's consider the case of series linear regulator. A series regulator controls the voltage drop between input and output nodes by actively controlling the value of the series resistance as shown in Figure 3-3.



Figure 3-3: Linear series regulator

An active device such as a Bipolar Junction Transistor or Field Effect Transistor (MOSFET) is used as a variable series resistor. The details vary for different implementations, but it boils down to this: the output is compared with a voltage reference by means of error amplifier and the series resistance is changed in a way that the voltage

drop maintains the output voltage close to that voltage reference as shown in Fig 3-4. This Figure shows a special type of series linear regulator called Low-Dropout Regulator. Lowdropout (LDO) regulators work in the same way as all linear voltage regulators. The main difference between LDO and non-LDO regulators is their schematic topology. Instead of an emitter follower topology, low-dropout regulators use open collector or open drain topology. In this topology, the transistor may be easily driven into saturation with the voltages available to the regulator. This allows the voltage drop from the unregulated voltage to be as low as the saturation voltage across the transistor [16].



Figure 3-4: Block diagram of a typical LDO using a PMOS

As shown in the figure, it is constituted of a pass-device (power transistor M1), a voltage reference (V_{ref}) and an error amplifier with a voltage divider composed of R_{FB1} and R_{FB2} used to sense the output voltage. The capacitor C_{out} is used for adjusting the stability in the loop compensation. The power PMOS M1 acts as an adjustable resistor. The error

amplifier adjusts the gate voltage $V_G(M1)$ so that the voltage drop $V_{DS}(M1)$ across the power transistor M1 gives the desired output voltage value V_{out} . The regulated voltage value is controlled by the gain of the resistive feedback loop. The error amplifier tends to equalize the voltage at its inputs, and therefore, the load voltage V_{out} is given by eq (3.1)

$$V_{out} = V_{ref} \cdot \frac{R_{FB1} + R_{FB2}}{R_{FB1}}$$
(3.1)

Regardless the current drawn by the control loop (Quiescent current), all current from the source flows to the load.

$$\therefore I_{out} \approx I_{in}$$

Hence, the efficiency is only defined by the ratio of voltages as show in eq (3.2).

$$\eta = \frac{P_{out}}{P_{in}} = \frac{V_{out} \cdot I_{out}}{V_{in} \cdot I_{in}} \approx \frac{V_{out}}{V_{in}}$$
(3.2)

So, the power is lost mainly in the series resistance and is calculated by eq (3.3)

$$P_{loss} = P_{in} - P_{out} = (V_{in} - V_{out}).I_{out}$$
(3.3)

That's the main disadvantage of linear regulators, the difference between V_{in} and V_{out} lead to power loss. As this difference increases, power loss increases which lead to lower efficiency. So, their efficiency is poor, which means the power dissipated is generally high. This has a negative consequence on the circuit size, because huge heatsinks are mandatory. While their main advantage is that they offer very low output ripple to the load. Therefore, they are well suited to supply noise sensitive circuits. Also, they are cheap and easy to use. Linear regulators provide excellent line and load regulation, and react very fast to transient load and line changes. Since they are non-switching regulators, they do not emit electromagnetic interferences (EMI).

3.2.2 Switching Voltage Regulators

Switching regulators generally use an oscillator for generating a clock signal, active elements as switches, and reactive passive elements (like capacitive and magnetic devices) for storing the energy to convert. If the switching elements are considered without their parasitics, the efficiency of switching converters can theoretically reach 100%. Practically, unlike linear regulators in which the pass-device is used as an adjustable resistor, in switching converters only the parasitics lower the power conversion efficiency.

There is a main type of switching regulators which is the DC-DC converter using both capacitive and magnetic passive devices, in combination with active switching devices. The capacitive devices are integrated or discrete capacitors, while the magnetic devices are generally discrete power inductors or power transformers. Different active devices are used to design such converters, depending on the application's needs. These devices are mostly transistors, diodes and thyristors.

The basic circuits used to design DC-DC converters consist of three main topologies, which are the step-down topologies, the step-up topologies, and the topologies able to perform both step-up and step-down conversion. The step-down topologies are only able to provide an output voltage lower than the input voltage, while the step-up topologies are only able to provide an output voltage higher than the input voltage. The combination of a step-up and a step-down topology enables both voltage reduction and voltage increase with a single switching converter.

The energy storage devices (i.e., capacitors, inductors or transformers) are the heart of any switching-mode power supply. Switching regulators use inductors which are usually wound on toroidal cores, often made of ferrite or powdered iron core with distributed airgap to minimize core losses at high frequencies.

Since we're concerned with low input voltages, we use the step-down topology which is called Boost converter and it was discussed in section 2.1.3.

Generally, DC-DC converters could be synchronous or asynchronous. Asynchronous DC-



Figure 3-5: Asynchronous Boost Converter



Figure 3-6: Synchronous Boost Converter

DC converters use a MOS switch and a DIODE as shown in Figure 3-5. While Synchronous DC-DC converters use an NMOS switch and a PMOS switch, they don't use a DIODE as shown in Figure 3-6. Synchronous topology refers to the practice of using an active element such as a MOSFET switched at the appropriate instants in place of a diode. In the synchronous case it's important that the two MOS switches are never both turned on at the same time, as this would short the capacitor to ground, possibly damaging the transistors, and severely decreasing efficiency. The advantage of the synchronous topology over the asynchronous is that the conduction losses through a MOSFET (M3) may be less than that through a diode (D1). However, Synchronous topology has a disadvantage that care has to be taken to ensure both MOSFETs are not turned on at the same time. Ensuring this does not occur requires more complexity for the driver circuit and more cost. So, using asynchronous topology, the IC tends to be smaller, relatively inexpensive and quite effective at low power levels since the conduction losses are low. So, in case of low power and low load currents its better to use asynchronous topology since in this case it's more important to decrease the current consumption of the driver circuit.

In a switching converter, the controller pilots the power devices, and therefore acts directly on the power conversion efficiency. Several tasks are accomplished by the controller. One of them consists of protecting the power devices against destructive effects (e.g., overcurrent, temperature overstress) by monitoring the currents, the voltages, and the temperature. However, its main role is to regulate the output voltage V_{out} to the desired voltage value. To do this, the controller can be designed to use different operation control methods, each of them adapted to a specific case. Among the operation control methods there are mainly two different modulations that are used in today's DC-DC converters, each optimized for a specific load condition. The first is the pulse-width modulation (PWM) operation control method, which is well suited for high power conversions. The second is the pulse-frequency modulation (PFM) operation control methods into one controller, the converter can be made very efficient over a wide range of output power.

The Pulse-width modulation control is illustrated in Figure 3-7. The Figure shows the analog signal waveform V_{osc} of the sawtooth oscillator switching between the voltages V_1 and V_2 . It also shows the error amplifier output voltage V_{EA} , and the digital PWM signal waveform $V_G(M1)$ of the power transistor gate driver, which commands the MOS transistor M1 .The regulation of output voltage is achieved by varying the duty cycle D of the switching devices which changes according to the error signal V_{EA} , while keeping the frequency of operation constant. An advantage of PWM control is that because the



Figure 3-7: Steady-state timing diagram of a PWM switching converter

frequency is fixed, any switching noise that arises can be predicted, thus facilitating the filtering process. A drawback of the method is that also due to constant frequency, the switching losses (e.g., the losses due to the charging/discharging of the gate and output capacitances of the power transistors) are independent of the load current. Consequently, the self-consuming current does not change. As a result, at times of light loads the PWM becomes inefficient because the switching losses dominate the conduction losses, which are load dependent.

To overcome the dramatic efficiency reduction in lightly loaded PWM converters, an additional operation control scheme called pulse-frequency modulation (PFM) has been developed. PFM is a nonlinear operation scheme in which pulse trains are applied to the energizing switch to maintain the output voltage at the desired voltage value. This mode lowers the frequency of the switching-cycle events at light loads, therefore lowering the

switching losses, which are dominant to the conduction losses at light output loads. On the positive side, PFM control has become prevalent in battery-operated equipment due to its light-load efficiency exceeds that of PWM. On the negative side, because the frequency varies, the noise associated with the switching remains indefinite, making the filtering process difficult to control and the noise difficult to remove.

There are several PFM operation schemes, such as single-pulse PFM, multi-pulse PFM, and burst-mode PFM. However, all operate according to the basic principle of initiating switching cycles only as needed to maintain the output voltage. Figure 3-8 shows the waveforms produced by a burst-mode PFM controller. The pulse trains represent the PFM operation control. When the current requested by the load decreases, the idle time increases, and therefore the frequency also decreases.

Figure 3-9 illustrates the efficiency characteristics of PWM and PFM. As shown, PFM shows good efficiency over wider range of load current.



Figure 3-8: Signal waveforms of the PFM operation control in steady-state.



Figure 3-9: Efficiency characteristics of PWM and PFM illustrated

Since we are dealing with low power system and since we want to achieve high efficiency at light load, the designed output regulation loop uses the PFM operation control.

3.3 System Design and circuit description

Fig. 3-10 shows the functional block diagram of the system used for output regulation using a one stage PFM boost regulators to generate 1.2 V output from a low input voltage starting from 210 mV. As mentioned before in section 3.2.2, The primary advantages of the PFM over PWM are the reduction of the self-bias loss, especially during low load operations, and simpler analog control blocks. While the PWM mode converter keeps switching at all load conditions, the PFM mode skips pulses during low load conditions so the PFM topology becomes more efficient than the PWM topology in light-load conditions that this design is targeted for. In terms of transient response, the PFM produces first-order RC



Figure 3-10: Block diagram of output regulation loop

waveform while PWM generally has second or third-order response depending on the design of the compensation network. Consequently, the design of the PFM control is much simpler allowing lower power operation of the boost converter; however, the PWM designs' transient responses are usually faster (achieved through polo-zero compensation and other aided feedforward techniques) than those of the PFM designs.

This output regulation stage is designed using asynchronous topology using an external Schottky Diode. The architecture is motivated by the current drive of this stage. And the conduction loss is less critical in this stage as it drives less current. As the asynchronous topology eliminates the PMOS switch, the switching loss (less gate drive) and bias current (simpler control circuit) are reduced. So, asynchronous topology is used in the output regulation loop.

The boost regulator is designed to operate in DCM mode (analyzed in section 2.1.3) since it's more suitable for low power operation.

The two-stage boost regulators (one for the MPPT and the other for output regulation) increases the max possible conversion ration since the overall conversion ratio will be equal to the conversion ratio of the first stage multiplied by the conversion ratio of the second stage which leads to lower min acceptable input voltage [17].

The system design of the output regulation loop is similar to the system designed in [18] but with some modifications in the circuit design to lower the power consumption. And eliminating the current limit comparator since when designing the system for lower power the current was not overshooting that much.

The PFM boost regulator of this loop is designed with hysteresis mode voltage feedback mechanism (also known as bang-bang control). The feedback signal monitors the output voltage and compares it with the internally generated reference voltage. The output of the feedback comparator remains low when the VFB signal is higher than the VREF; a condition that happens when output is above the regulation level. In this condition, the MOS switch remains off and the output discharges under the given load condition. Once the decreasing output voltage crosses the regulation level, VFB signal falls below the VREF signal and the feedback comparators output becomes high. This allow the oscillator which produces pulse train to pass through the AND gate as long as the EN remains high (i.e., VFB remains lower than VREF). The integrated n-MOS transistor is turned on by the positive edge of OSC and turned off by the negative edge of the OSC within OSCs single time period. The feedback comparator is designed with 15mV hysteresis on the upper side.

The conceptual waveforms of the converter with different input voltage and load current conditions are shown in Figure 3-11 and 3-12. Figure 3-11a shows a typical condition with load, *IL*1 and input voltage, *VIN*1, for which the converter is running at single pulse operation. At each switching event, given the input, the inductor current is increases to *IPK* ($= \frac{VIN1}{LIN} TON$) and that produces an output voltage increase of *VRIPPLE*. The VRIPPLE being more than the VHYS, the feedback comparator turns off the switch (EN goes low), before starting the next pulse and forces the converter into idle mode. The no-switching mode is defined by the section of idle mode when the inductor current has reached zero



Figure 3-11: Conceptual waveform of the PFM mode converter. (a) Typical single pulse operation. (b) Single pulse operation with decreased input voltage as compared to situation shown in (a).



Figure 3-12: Multi pulse operation (a) Single pulse operation with increased load as compared to the condition shown in Fig. 3-11a. (b) Multi pulse operation, when the converters idle time is exhausted due to increased load or conversion ratio or for both

and output discharges under given load, IL1. The average of the inductor current during TBOOST period is equal to the load current IL1. Fig. 3-11b represents operation with decreased input voltage, VIN2 (VIN2<VIN1), as compared to Fig. 3-11a. The peak current is lower and the VRIPPLE decreases too. Consequently, the idle time is reduced and switching events happen more often, as shown in Fig. 3-11b. Fig 3-12a shows the operation with increased load as compared to Fig. 3-11a. The inductor peak current remains same as Fig. 3-11a, but to compensate for higher load current the converter reduces the idle time. Note that both with conversion ratio increment (input voltage decrease) and load current increment, the converter exhibits more frequent switching. In both cases load and input variation is compensated by modulating only the idle time. The converter switches to multi

pulse operation (Fig. 3-12b) at higher load as a single pulse cannot provide enough charge to recover the output. In multi pulse mode, for every active period, the oscillator is turned on for longer duration to allow multiple cycles. The inductor current builds up at every TON and decrease only a little during the TOFF (because TON to TOFF ratio is very high). At every successive pulse, output voltage continues to increase. Once the output voltage crosses the hysteresis value above the regulation level, the converter switches to idle mode. Note that unlike the single pulse operation, the ripple voltage in this condition is defined primarily by the hysteresis value, not by the inductor peak current. In practice, the ripple magnitude in this condition is little more than the hysteresis value, because after the converter switches to idle mode, the remaining inductor current charges the output voltage little more than the level where the decision was taken. On the contrary, the ripple magnitudes in the single pulse cases are defined by the value of the peak current, and can be much higher than the hysteresis value. The converter regulates its output voltage by modulating the frequency of the switching events. By controlling both the active and idle time, the feedback comparator (EN pulse) modulates the architectural duty cycle [TACTIVE/ (TACTIVE+TIDLE)] in response to changes in VIN and ILOAD. However, oscillator's self-duty cycle [TON/TOSC, where, TOSC is the period of the oscillator] remains constant under all input and load conditions. It is critical to have as high duty cycle as possible to achieve higher conversion ratio. A lower input voltage demands a smaller idle time (Fig. 3-11b) and the minimum idle time is the off period (TOFF=TOSC-TON) of the oscillator. Therefore, maximizing TON/TOSC helps reduce the minimum input voltage for operation. Further, note that variation in the duty cycle needs to be minimized (TOSC and TON can vary but the ratio needs to be constant) to ensure constant maximum

conversion ratio under voltage/temperature variation. In summary, oscillator with a high and well-controlled (voltage/temperature invariant) duty cycle is necessary for high conversion ratio PFM mode voltage regulator. This section shows the design of the feedback comparator and the design of a high duty cycle to enable boost operation from very low input voltage.

3.3.1 High Duty Cycle Current-starved Relaxation Oscillator

Oscillators can consume a significant fraction of the total power of a system, and often do not benefit directly from technology scaling. In light of these demands, there is a need for high performance oscillator designs which achieve optimal trade-offs between size, power efficiency and accuracy.

Crystal oscillators are the established leader in the kHz–MHz range and provide excellent frequency stability at the cost of larger physical size. In contrast, ring oscillators are areaand power-efficient but suffer when it comes to temperature stability. Relaxation oscillators offer an attractive compromise of these factors, with small size, zero start-up time, and low temperature dependence.

One recently introduced low-power oscillator topology is the current-mode relaxation oscillator [19]–[20], whose operation is illustrated in Figure 3.13. Transistors M0 and M1 are each biased with a current I_{ref} , while arranged as a source-coupled voltage comparator. One branch of I_{ref} flows through the resistor R_{ref} to generate a reference voltage V_{ref} , while a second matched current flows into capacitor C and slowly charges the voltage V_c . Initially, V_c is reset to ground, causing V_{cmp} to be pulled low. Once V_c exceeds V_{ref} , M1



Figure 3-13: Single-phase current-mode relaxation oscillator and timing diagram

amplifies the voltage difference ($V_c - V_{ref}$) and V_{cmp} rises, triggering a digital clock buffer to generate a pulse V_{rst} which in turn resets V_c . Unlike most voltage-mode relaxation oscillators, no additional comparator stage is required, thanks to the re-use of I_{ref} for both charging the capacitor and biasing the comparator.

Although it improves both power consumption and area, the existing current-mode relaxation oscillator has two important drawbacks. First, the duty cycle of V_{rst} is generally quite low, and dependent on delays in the comparator, digital buffer and capacitor reset, all of which are sensitive to temperature and process variations. A clock divider is usually needed to convert the narrow pulse V_{rst} to 50% duty cycle signal, halving the clock frequency and adding to the dynamic power consumption. Second, V_{rst} will generally not reach VDD, making the system vulnerable to noise and jitter. As shown in Fig. 3.13, both V_{Cmp} and V_C are reset to ground once V_{rst} is larger than the threshold voltage of switch S1. Thus, V_{rst} is usually pulled down before it reaches VDD. To address the above problems, we use a dual-phase current-mode relaxation oscillator proposed in [21].

Figure 3-14 shows the dual-phase current-mode relaxation oscillator M2–M4 are matched transistors. Two identical capacitors C1 and C2 are alternately charged by I_{ref} and reset to ground as dictated by the complementary output clocks φ and $\overline{\varphi}$, which are generated by a set-reset (SR) latch using current-starved logic.

The timing diagram of the dual-phase structure is also illustrated in Figure 3.14. When $\varphi = 1$ and $\overline{\varphi} = 0$, V_{C2} and V_{cmpn} at the drain of M4 are reset to ground. The voltage on C1 is charged up with a slope of $(I_{ref}/C1)$. Meanwhile, biased with I_{ref} , M3 compares V_{C1} with the reference voltage ($V_{ref} = I_{ref} \cdot R_{ref}$) and provides an amplified difference V_{cmpp} to the SR latch. Once V_{cmpp} reaches the latch's threshold voltage, the SR latch changes its state to $\varphi = 0$ and $\overline{\varphi} = 1$. In this state, there is no current flowing through M3 and C1, and I_{ref} biases M4 while charging C2. The oscillation period can be expressed as:

$$T = 2\left(\frac{V_{ref}}{\frac{I_{ref}}{C}} + \tau_{M3,4} + \tau_{SR}\right) = 2\left(\tau_{RC} + \tau_{cmp} + \tau_{SR}\right)$$
(3.4)



Figure 3-14: dual-phase current-mode relaxation oscillator and its timing diagram

where C1 = C2 = C, $\tau_{RC} = R_{ref}$. *C*, τ_{cmp} is the comparator delay caused by finite transistor gain and the parasitic capacitance at node $V_{cmpp,n}$ and τ_{SR} stands for the digital delay of SR latch.

Compared to the single-phase topology, the advantages of this proposed dual-phase structure are: (i) Since the two capacitors are charged separately at two half-cycles, the capacitor resetting delay does not add to the oscillation period, which improves the frequency accuracy. (ii) The clock outputs (φ and $\bar{\varphi}$) are square waveforms with a 50% duty cycle rather than a narrow pulse. Thus, a clock divider is not needed after the oscillation signal, which saves power. Also, the duty cycle can be increased by adjusting the ratio of C1:C2.

The dual phase oscillator is designed to have an oscillation frequency of 24 *KHz* and duty cycle of 70.2%. The simulation result of the oscillator is shown in Figure 3-15.



Figure 3-15: Transient response of the designed oscillator

The delay in the oscillator signal is due to the added current starving technique which is used to reduce the power dissipated by the SR latch.

The current consumption of the designed oscillator is ~140 nA.

3.3.2 Feedback comparator

Feedback comparator works as the core decision making circuitry for this hysteresis mode converter. Figure 3-16 shows the feedback comparator circuit used in the output regulation loop. The comparator circuit implementation is composed of a simple operational transconductance amplifier (OTA) stage followed by a matched inverter and finally a CMOS inverter. The matched inverter is used to make the comparator more balanced and the CMOS inverter generates the digital output level. The input differential pair has large area to reduce random offset and the load current mirror uses transistors with large length to reduce systematic offset. The hysteresis is implemented using M3 and M5 [17],[18]. Feedback voltage is sensed via the external resistive network and is compared with the



Figure 3-16: Feedback comparator circuit

internally generated reference, as shown in Fig. 3-16. The output of the comparator (EN) defines active ($V_{FB} < V_{REF}$) or idle ($V_{FB} > V_{REF}$) mode. The feedback circuit consumes < 30 nA of bias current. The design trade-off with such low bias current is the delay of the comparator response time. That is expected to result in a decrease of the regulated valley of the output voltage at different load conditions. The effect of delay is expected to be prominent at higher load condition [18]. The cascode free design allows very low operating voltage of the comparator.

Figure 3-17 show the AC simulation result of the feedback comparator.

3.3.3 System integration of the output regulation boost stage

After designing the boost regulator core, oscillator and the feedback comparator, a test bench is made as shown in Figure. 3-18 to simulate the output regulation loop at different values of V_{in} for a 6 K Ω load. The Schottky Diode is modelled using its SPICE model parameters from its datasheet.



Figure 3-17: AC simulation of the Feedback Comparator



Figure 3-18: Test bench of output regulation loop

Figure 3-19 and 3-20 shows the simulation results of the output regulation stage when applying 200 mV at its input. The blue trace represents the output voltage V_{out} , the red one represents the inductor current, the purple one represents the gate voltage V_{gate} of the MOS switch, the orange one represents the enable signal *En* of the feedback comparator while the green one represents V_{FB} . From the simulation results at Vin = 200 mV we get 72% efficiency, 1.19 V output voltage and 1 mV output voltage ripples. As shown in Figure 3-19, the enable signal from the feedback comparator is always on since Vin is low.



Figure 3-19: Simulation results of the output regulation stage at Vin = 200 mV



Figure 3-20: Magnifying the simulation results of the output regulation stage at Vin = 200 mV

Figure 3-21 and 3-22 shows the simulation results of the output regulation stage when applying 600 mV at its input. At $Vin = 600 \ mV$ we get 68% efficiency, 1.2 V output voltage and 15 mV output voltage ripples. As shown in Figure 3-21 and 3-22, the Enable signal is not high all the time, it is switching because Vin increased so in this case lower switching is needed for the PFM boost regulator. So, the enable goes low to skip some of the oscillator pulses which is equivalent to lower the switching frequency of the regulator.

Figure 3-23 and 3-24 shows the simulation results of the output regulation stage when applying 600 mV at its input. At Vin = 600 mV we get 65.4% efficiency, 1.2 V output voltage and 39 mV output voltage ripples. From Figure 3-24 its shown that starting from Vin = 900 mV the regulator starts to operate in the single-mode operation since the Vin is closer to 1.2 V (the desired output voltage).



Figure 3-21: Simulation results of the output regulation stage at Vin = 600 mV



Figure 3-22: Magnifying the simulation results of the output regulation stage at Vin = 600 mV



Figure 3-23: Simulation results of the output regulation stage at Vin = 900 mV



Figure 3-24: Magnifying the simulation results of the output regulation stage at Vin = 900 mV

3.4 Post-Layout Simulations

3.4.1 Post-Layout simulations of the oscillator

Show in Figure 3.3-16 is post-layout simulation of the current starved oscillator. The layout increased the delay of the oscillator. The post-layout simulations showed oscillation frequenc of 23.45 KHz, 70% duty cycle and current consumption of 136 nA

Transient Response



Figure 3-25: Post-layout simulations of the oscillator

CHAPTER 4. BANDGAP

4.1 Introduction

A bandgap voltage reference provides a voltage as precise as possible meaning that it must be immune to PVT variations where:

- **P:** manufacturing process variations
- V: supply voltage
- **T:** temperature

Semiconductor technology does not directly offer any electric quantity that is nominally independent of the ambient temperature. Thus, temperature independence has generally been envisioned in the form of combining two phenomena that have opposite temperature coefficients (TCs). for example: the negative TC can be obtained using a forward biased diode so BJT can be used as it is less sensitive to process variations than MOSFET transistors while the positive TC can be obtained by using two diode stacks biased a different current density as base emitter voltage of two transistors[25] as shown

in figure 4.1-1.



Figure 4-1 Temperature compensation using BJTS

The existing Voltage references can be roughly categorized as two types: one type related to the bandgap voltage of silicon or a fraction of it (i.e., sub-bandgap) using BJTs and resistors, the other one related to other factors such as MOS transistor threshold voltages and subthreshold parameters using MOS transistors (with or without resistors). Generally speaking, the bandgap or sub bandgap references show relatively small process variations than CMOS VRs with relatively high-power consumptions.

4.2 Proposed Design

A sub band gap was designed with a low temperature coefficient (TC) and high power supply ripple rejection (PSRR) using subthreshold MOS transistors, a single BJT and two resistors as shown in figure 4.2-1. The sub-BGR consists of a novel complementary toabsolute-temperature (CTAT) voltage generator based on a scaled emitter-base voltage of a BJT, and an improved proportional-to-absolute temperature (PTAT) voltage generator

based on stacking of _VGS of sub-VTH MOSFETs. The PTAT circuit achieves reduced power consumption without consuming a large chip area [24].



Figure 4-2 Bandgap core

4.3 Art of work for the circuitry of BG

4.3.1 Bandgap operation

The single parasitic vertical PNP BJT generates the CTAT voltage where:

$$V_{BE} = ln\left(\frac{lC}{lS}\right) \times V_T, \quad where V_T = \frac{KT}{q} \to (4.1)$$

The operational amplifier OPA shown in Fig.4.3-1 enforces nodes A and B to have equal potential. To optimize the power and area, the current *IR* through *R1* is chosen to be three times of the current through Q1, and the resistance *R1* is about 17M.Transistors M1-5 act as current mirror and the size of M2 is three times of M1 and M3–M5. so that current through R2 is three times that through R1 this ratio can be used to decrease the CTAT of the circuit where:

$$V_{R_2} = \frac{R_2}{R_1} V_{EB} \to (4.2)$$

The PTAT voltage generator consists of transistors M7–M12 all which work in the subthreshold region. The subthreshold drain current *ID* of a MOSFET is an exponential function of its gate–source voltage VGS and drain–source voltage VDS. For VDS > 0.1 V, drain current *ID* is almost independent of VDS and is approximately given by:

$$I_D = \mu Cox (\eta - 1) V_T^2 e^{\frac{(VGS - VTH)}{\eta VT}} \rightarrow (4.3)$$

where *K* is the aspect ratio (=*W/L*) of the transistor, μ is the carrier mobility, *C*OX is the gate-oxide capacitance, $V_T = \frac{KT}{q}$ is the thermal voltage, *kB* is the Boltzmann constant, *T* is the absolute temperature, and *q* is the elementary charge, *V*TH is the threshold voltage of the MOSFET, and $\eta = 1 + Cd/Cox$ is the subthreshold slope factor, respectively.

BY making V_{th} of M11 and M12 as similar as possible

$$V_{DS_{12}} = V_{GS_{12}} - V_{GS_{11}} = \eta VT ln\left(\frac{3K_{11}}{K_{12}}\right) \to (4.4)$$

$$V_{DS_{10}} = \eta V_T ln\left(\frac{2K_{10}}{K_9}\right) \rightarrow (4.5)$$
$$V_{DS_8} = \eta V_T ln\left(\frac{K_8}{K_7}\right) \rightarrow (4.6)$$

so, the output voltage reference is given by:

$$V_{refrence} = \frac{R_2}{R_1} \left[\eta V_T ln \left(\frac{6K_{11}K_9k_7}{K_{12}K_{10}k_8} \right) \frac{R_1}{R_2} + V_{EB} \right] \to (4.7)$$



Figure 4-3 Schematic of OPA used in the proposed sub-BGR

4.3.2 <u>Start-up problem of BG circuitry</u>

Since there are two stable points one where I1=I2=zero and the circuit is off, and the second one where IR1=3*current passing through BJT. So, a startup circuit is used where MS6 becomes on making current move through the circuit which becomes on once more.



Figure 4-4 Startup problem of the BG

4.4 <u>Results</u>

4.4.1 <u>Typical results</u>

The output voltage=500mv to be used as a voltage reference in the next stages, the variations of the voltage across temperature from -40 to120 degree Celsius is ± 3.5 mv as shown in figure 4.4-1and 4.4-2.



Figure 4-5 Voltage variation across temperature

The temperature coefficient of the voltage across this temperature range= $10^6 \times \frac{(V_{bg(max)} - V_{bg(min)})}{(T_{max} - T_{min}) \times V_{bg(nom)}} = 4.625 * \frac{10^{-5}v}{c} = 92.37ppm/$

where V_{bq} is the output voltage of the bandgap.

DC Response



Figure 4-6 Voltage derivation across temperature

By decreasing IB supplied to the folded OPAMP so that the transistors enter subthreshold region the power consumption of the circuit do decrease approximately equals to 87.5nW.



Figure 4-7 power consumption of the band gap

The power supply rejection ratio (PSRR): is defined to indicate the sensitivity of the Bandgap to VDD variations= $20\log\left(\frac{vref}{vdd}\right)$



Figure 4-8 PSRR of the bandgap

The circuit is nearly immune to VDD variations within ± 100 mv with nominal=1.2v as shown in fig.4.4-5





4.4.2 **Process variations at different corners**

1)AT SS corner V_{th} of transistors decreases which have a direct relation to output voltage the voltage variation is about 14mV from typical state



Figure 4-10 voltage variation with temperature at SS corner

2)AT FF corner V_{th} of transistors increases which have a direct relation to output voltage the voltage variation is about 14mV from typical state


Figure 4-11 voltage variation with temperature at FF corner

The process variations in both cases is about 2.5%. A trimming circuit can be used by using M11 as a calibration tool to decrease process variations down to 0.3%



Figure 4-12 using M11 as a trimming circuit

After trimming output voltage becomes:



Figure 4-13 output voltage variations at SS corner after using a trimming circuit



Figure 4-14 output voltage variations at FF corner after using a trimming circuit

4.4.3 Layout Results

OPAMP Layout:



Figure 4-16 op-amp simulation DC gain



Figure 4-15 op-amp layout





Figure 4-17 post layout simulation of DC gain

BANDGAP CORE LAYOUT:

· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	,	
·······		+	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	•••••	······
	<u> </u>		
	<u>••••</u> •••	+	
	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	+	
· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	+	

Figure 4-18 Band cap core layout



Figure 4-19 Layout simulation of Band gap core

POC	Bandgap	Sub-Bandgap
V _{OUT}	1.23 V	0.5 V
TC	12.6 ppm/°c	92.37 ppm/°c
Power consumption	117.525 nW	87.5 nW
PSRR	@10Hz: -70.8dB @10KHz: -52.98 dB @1 MHz: -17.22 dB	@10Hz: -58.03 @10 KHz: -21.99 @1 MHz: -10.43
Minimum VDD	1.45V	1V

Table 4.4-1 Specs achieved	for sub-BGR vs	a typical BGR
----------------------------	----------------	---------------

4.5 Voltage to current converter

A certain ideal current value is needed for biasing this value cannot be directly taken from voltage reference through a current mirror in order not to disturb output voltage through the leakage in the current mirror so a V to I converter is used.



Figure 4-20 voltage to current converter

4.5.1 **Operation**

A folded op-amp is used to make sure that the voltage on used resistor is equal to output of the ban gap, where $I_{ref}=V_{ref}/R$. By using current mirrors different values of required current can be obtained. For a very high accuracy current an off-chip resistor can be used.

4.5.2 <u>Results</u>

The output current with nominal = 10namp variation across temperature in the range from to $-40 \text{ to } 120^{\circ}C$.



Figure 4-21 current variation across temperature



Figure 4-22 current variation across temperature at SS corner



Figure 4-23 current variation across temperature at FF corner

CHAPTER 5. COLD START BLOCK

5.1 Introduction

Since the RF harvesting chip aims to collect RF electromagnetic waves from the surroundings and try to transform this collected power into useable one therefore the first challenge is that the harvested power is so small in range of -18 dBm to 10dbm which is more decreased when it passes by the RF rectifiers which converts RF to DC voltage degrading received power much more. The input voltage to the power management unit becomes a few millivolts which is too low to directly support the electronic circuits and is not enough to make transistors work where they need a minimum threshold at least and is not enough to store enough voltage to act as a power supply to the power management unit itself.

self-startup function is highly desired to kick-start the system operation from cold state. Furthermore, power hungry applications can deplete the stored harvested energy even before it can be recharged. Therefore, the major challenges in start-up circuit design are fast self-startup from low input voltages, up-conversion of the available low voltages to a higher usable voltage and executing these targets with high overall conversion efficiency [26][27].

The minimum startup voltage of a step-up DC-DC converter in standard CMOS technology is limited by the oscillator since a clock signal is required for a charge pump (CP). Practically, the minimum supply voltage of an oscillator (VDDMIN) is limited by PMOS-NMOS VTH. Figure 5.1-1 shows the structure of a cold start unit.

107



Figure 5-1 structure of a cold start unit

5.2 Cold Start Blocks

5.2.1 <u>Start-up oscillator</u>

One approach to boosting such a low input voltage is to use a low-voltage oscillator to start up a higher voltage DC-DC converter. low threshold MOSFET transistors are used. The oscillator stage is used to convert Dc voltage to Ac pulse to act as a clock pulse to the charge pump. This oscillator consists of 35 stages of a ring oscillator having a frequency=4. 086M. The frequency is reduced by increasing the number of stages and the delay of each to improve the overall efficiency however the settling time do increase. The minimum used volt is 0.2v so low threshold transistors are used [23]. Below are the simulation results and the post layout simulation results.



Figure 5-2 Oscillator schematic



Figure 5-3 Oscillator Output



Figure 5-4 Oscillator Layout



Figure 5-5 post Layout simulation of oscillator

After layout simulation output frequency became 3.682M

5.2.2 <u>Non-overlapping clock generator and buffer</u>

Non-overlapping clock generator is used to make sure that the clock making charge pump work doesn't overlap it consists of a NAND gate and two inverters. the buffer is used so that the circuit withstands the high capacitance load of the charge pump where each cap value equals to 3 pF.



Figure 5-6 Non-overlapping clock generator schematic

The Non-overlapping clock generator consists of two halves. The input to each half is the output of the other half and output of the oscillator or its inversion. if the inputs to the NAND gate are alike then it makes output reaches zero and so on.



Figure 5-7 Layout of non-overlapping clock generator



Figure 5-8 Buffer schematic

Due to the high capacitance load of the charge pump a buffer is needed to withstand it or the clock signals will be corrupted in this buffer 6 stages of inverters are used where each stage sizing is greater than previous one 5 times.



Figure 5-9 Buffer layout



Figure 5-10 clock driving charge pump



Figure 5-11 post Layout simulation of clock driving charge pump

5.2.3 charge pump

A charge pump is a kind of DC to DC converter that uses capacitors for energetic charge storage to raise or lower voltage.



Figure 5-12 two stages of a charge pump

Charge pumps use some form of switching device to control the connection of a supply voltage across a load through a capacitor. In a two-stage cycle, in the first stage a capacitor is connected across the supply, charging it to that same voltage. In the second stage the circuit is reconfigured so that the capacitor is in series with the supply and the load. This doubles the voltage across the load - the sum of the original supply and the capacitor voltages. The pulsing nature of the higher voltage switched output is often smoothed by the use of an output capacitor.



Figure 5-13 charge pump

The used charge pump is a classical one, ten stages where used to reach the required output of 1.2V at different temperature and corner effects if the voltage exceeds the required a battery protection circuit can be used. the minimum input voltage to the charge pump is 0.2V.



Figure 5-14 Layout of the used charge pump



Figure 5-15 charge pump efficiency at various loads

The optimum used Rout is 13M ,so it is required to used Rout greater than 10M at input output volt=0.2.



Figure 5-16 charge pump efficiency at different input voltages @Rout= 13M

5.3 Overall results of cold start unit



Transient Response

Figure 5-17 cold start output @ vin=0.2v

Transient Response







Transient Response

Figure 5-19 cold star output @ FF corner

Transient Response



Figure 5-20 cold star output @ SS corner

Typically settling time is about 150 microseconds as frequency is reduced to increase overall efficiency by reducing switching losses, At SS corner the settling time increases and it decreases at FF corner as V_{th} is decreased as total output=number of stages*input voltage-number of stages* V_{TH}

Expressions



Figure 5-21 efficiency of cold start at various loads

5.4 <u>Cold start comparator</u>

The cold start comparator is responsible for enabling the cold-start block at the cold start mode and disable it at the primary mode. The design of the cold start comparator is proposed in [22] and is shown in Figure 1. When VLOAD exceeds a threshold voltage, the cold-start comparator makes CS_DI S high, transitioning to primary mode.

The comparator is powered from V_{LOAD} . Initially, as V_{LOAD} increases from 0 V, V_{d1} follows V_{LOAD} (since the leakage through M5 is >> the OFF-state leakage through the NMOS pulldown paths), causing CS_DIS to be low, enabling the ring oscillator and CP (Charge Pump). As V_{LOAD} continues to increase, V_{b1} at the gate of M3 increases, which pulls V_{d1} lower. The relative strengths of M3 and M5, and V_{b1} divide ratio determine the V_{LOAD} at which V_{d1} goes low enough to cause CS_DIS to go high. The threshold could be programmable by using a variable resistance (using programmable MOS switches) as shown in Figure 1. The threshold value is determined based on minimum V_{LOAD} for



Figure 1: Cold start comparator with hysteresis

efficient converter operation and is designed to be 0.75 V. Hysteresis is built into the comparator through M4 and M2, which makes the comparator immune to incident power fluctuation. When V_{LOAD} discharges, harvester returns to cold start at 0.3 V (> min. voltage for ring osc. startup). The comparator consumes power < 15 nW.

Figure 2 shows the simulation results of the cold start comparator. As shown the CS-DIS is high starting from 0.75 V while it goes low at 0.3 V.



Figure 2: Transient response of cold start comparator while increasing and decreasing its VDD

CHAPTER 6. CONCLUSION

This work presents a power management IC for low-voltage RF energy harvesting in power range from -18dBm to 10 dBm that can harvest energy from the ambient surroundings at the radio frequency range of 2.4GHZ.It depends on a dedicated bootstrap circuit enabling battery-less cold start-up from input voltage down to 200 mV to produce an output of at least 1.2 volts and works with two loops for input and output voltage regulations. Once cold start-up is performed, the bootstrap circuit is automatically disabled using a hysteresis comparator and the two voltage regulators start operating, so as to increase efficiency and to limit the power absorption. A sub band gap circuit is used to provide an accurate voltage reference and biasing source for the power management unit. The first stage of voltage regulation is a MPPT stage to operate on maximum power point to allow an efficient harvesting profile and also high overall system efficiency ,based on a PFM mode of operation and maximizing for rectifiers operating for output in range of 100Ω -500 Ω with efficiency up to 64% and tracking efficiency up to 97%. The second stage is a boost converter working on both PWM and PDM modes regulating the output to 1.2v with high efficiency and small ripples. The sub band gap circuit provides a constant voltage against temperature and process variations providing less than ± 3.5 mV variation in the temperature range from -40 to 120 degree Celsius. The IC was tested with input voltage ranges from 100 mV up to 1 V. Thanks to nano-power design techniques and to a careful control of the energy consumption, the circuit can operate with an input power of less than 1µW.The most important aspect of this IC is that it is a RF chip where Compared to common alternative energy sources like solar and wind, RF harvesting has the least energy

density, but this doesn't stop this IC from achieving high efficiency at the same time. Decreasing the minimum manageable power to such low levels paves the way towards the deployment of a new class of applications based on tiny and weak environmental sources that could not be efficiently Exploited up to now ,which will allow product designers and engineers to extend battery lifetime and ultimately get rid of the primary energy storage element in a large range of wireless applications like industrial monitoring, home automation, wearables.

REFERENCES

- T. Paing, E. Falkenstein, R. Zane and Z. Popovic, "Custom IC for Ultra-low Power RF Energy Harvesting," 2009 Twenty-Fourth Annual IEEE Applied Power Electronics Conference and Exposition, Washington, DC, 2009, pp. 1239-1245.
- [2] S. Yoshida et al., "The C-band MPT rectifier using a HEMT without bonding-wire connection for a space health monitoring system," in IEEE Wireless Power Transfer Conf., May 2013, pp. 163–166.
- [3] M. Shim et al., "Self-powered 30µW to 10mW piezoelectric energy harvesting system with 9.09ms/V maximum power point tracking time," IEEE JSSC, vol. 50, no. 10, pp. 2367–2379, 2015.
- [4] G. Chowdary, A. Singh and S. Chatterjee, "An 18 nA, 87% Efficient Solar, Vibration and RF Energy-Harvesting Power Management System With a Single Shared Inductor," in IEEE Journal of Solid-State Circuits, vol. 51, no. 10, pp. 2501-2513, Oct. 2016.
- [5] S. Uprety and H. Lee, "A 93%-power-efficiency photovoltaic energy harvester with irradiance-aware auto-reconfigurable mppt scheme achieving>95% MPPT efficiency across 650µW to 1W and 2.9ms FOCV MPPT transient time," in ISSCC. IEEE, 2017, pp. 378–379.
- [6] M. Dini, M. Filippi, A. Romani, M. Tartagni, V. Bottarel and G. Ricotti, "A 40 nA/source energy harvesting power converter for multiple and heterogeneous sources," ESSCIRC 2014 - 40th European Solid State Circuits Conference (ESSCIRC), Venice Lido, 2014, pp. 259-262.
- [7] 2nd International Conference on Sustainable Energy Engineering and Application, ICSEEA 2014 Maximum power point tracking for photovoltaic using incremental conductance method Ratna Ika Putri, Sapto Wibowo, Muhamad Rifa.
- [8] Elhebeary, M. R., Ibrahim, M. A. A., Aboudina, M. M., & Mohieldin, A. N. (2018). Dual-Source Self-Start High-Efficiency Microscale Smart Energy Harvesting System for IoT. IEEE Transactions on Industrial Electronics, 65(1), 342–351.

- [9] Ibrahim, M. A. A., Aboudina, M. M., & Mohieldin, A. N. (2017). An ultra-low-power MPPT architecture for photovoltaic energy harvesting systems. IEEE EUROCON 2017 -17th International Conference on Smart Technologies.
- [10] Robert W. Erickson, Dragan Maksimovic, "Fundamentals of Power Electronics," Springer, First or second edition.
- [11] A. Wang, A. Waters and C. -. R. Shi, "A sub-nW mV-range programmable threshold comparator for near-zero-energy sensing," 2016 IEEE International Symposium on Circuits and Systems (ISCAS), Montreal, QC, 2016, pp. 1054-1057.
- [12] S. Suman, K. G. Sharma and P. K. Ghosh, "Analysis and design of current starved ring VCO," 2016 International Conference on Electrical, Electronics, and Optimization Techniques (ICEEOT), Chennai, 2016, pp. 3222-3227.
- [13] S. Dehghani and T. Johnson, "A 2.4-GHz CMOS Class-E Synchronous Rectifier," in IEEE Transactions on Microwave Theory and Techniques, vol. 64, no. 5, pp. 1655-1666, May 2016.
- [14] http://www.onmyphd.com/?p=voltage.regulators
- [15] "Bidirectional DC Voltage Conversion for Low Power Applications" PhD Thesis by Vincent LORENTZ. 2009
- [16] https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Low-dropout_regulator
- [17] Ahmed, Khondker Zakir, and Saibal Mukhopadhyay. "A 190 nA bias current 10 mV input multistage boost regulator with intermediate-node control to supply RF blocks in self-powered wireless sensors." IEEE Transactions on Power Electronics 31.2 (2015): 1322-1333.
- [18] Ahmed, Khondker Zakir, and Saibal Mukhopadhyay. "A wide conversion ratio, extended input 3.5-μA boost regulator with 82% efficiency for lowvoltage energy harvesting." IEEE Transactions on Power Electronics 29.9 (2013): 4776-4786.

- [19] Denier, Urs. "Analysis and design of an ultralow-power CMOS relaxation oscillator." IEEE Transactions on Circuits and Systems I: Regular Papers 57.8 (2010): 1973-1982.
- [20] Chiang, Yu-Hsuan, and Shen-Iuan Liu. "Nanopower CMOS Relaxation Oscillators With Sub-100\$\hbox {ppm}/^{\circ}hbox {C} \$ Temperature Coefficient." IEEE Transactions on Circuits and Systems II: Express Briefs 61.9 (2014): 661-665.
- [21] Dai, Shanshan, and Jacob K. Rosenstein. "A 14.4 nW 122KHz dual-phase current-mode relaxation oscillator for near-zero-power sensors." 2015 IEEE Custom Integrated Circuits Conference (CICC). IEEE, 2015.
- [22] Sadagopan, Kamala Raghavan, et al. "A cm-scale 2.4-GHz wireless energy harvester with nanowatt boost converter and antenna-rectifier resonance for WiFi powering of sensor nodes." IEEE Journal of Solid-State Circuits 53.12 (2018): 3396-3406.

[23] M. Dini, A. Romani, M. Filippi and M. Tartagni, "A Nanocurrent Power Management IC for Low-Voltage Energy Harvesting Sources," in IEEE Transactions on Power Electronics, vol.31, no.6, pp.4292-4304, June2016.

[24] L. Wang, C. Zhan, J. Tang, Y. Liu and G. Li, "A 0.9-V 33.7-ppm/°C 85nW Sub-Bandgap Voltage Reference Consisting of Subthreshold MOSFETs and Single BJT," in *IEEE Transactions on Very Large-Scale Integration (VLSI) Systems*, vol. 26, no. 10, pp. 2190-2194, Oct. 2018.

[25] B. Razavi, "The Bandgap Reference [A Circuit for All Seasons]," in *IEEE Solid-State Circuits Magazine*, vol. 8, no. 3, pp. 9-12, Summer 2016.

[26] A. Das, Y. Gao and T. T. Kim, "An output feedback-based start-up technique with automatic disabling for battery-less energy harvesters," *2015 IEEE International Symposium on Circuits and Systems (ISCAS)*, Lisbon, 2015, pp. 233-236.

[27] P. Chen *et al.*, "A 95mV-startup step-up converter with Vth-tuned oscillator by fixed-charge programming and capacitor pass-on scheme," *2011 IEEE International Solid-State Circuits Conference*, San Francisco, CA, 2011, pp. 216-218.